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Statement of Compliance 
 
 
 
 
To the Hon Mark McGowan MLA, Minister for Education and Training  
 
 
In accordance with section 66 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, we hereby 
submit for your information and presentation to Parliament the Annual Report of Central TAFE for 
the period ending 31 December 2006. 
 
The report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1985. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Dr Debra Rosser 
Chair  
Governing Council 
Central TAFE 
 
 
 

 
 
Ms Glenda Martinick  
Deputy Chair  
Governing Council 
Central TAFE 
 
 
27 February 2007 
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Managing Director’s Report 
 
 
 
2006 has been another successful year for Central TAFE.  The College has reviewed its Plan and 
Priorities for 2006 – 2010 and I am confident that most of the goals we set ourselves for last year, if 
not all, have been achieved.  Those that have not been completed we will continue to work on in 
2007. 
 
The College responded proactively to the Minister for Education and Training’s priorities in 2006. 
The College has experienced growth in employment based training and VET in Schools programs, 
with almost half of the students attending Central TAFE aged between 15 and 24 years.  
 
The College increased its focus on academic excellence and excellence in teaching and in 
supporting and enhancing teaching and learning practices across the College.  
 
Central TAFE continued with its highly successful partnering arrangements with industry and 
employers and produced quality programs and graduates work-ready, well able to contribute to the 
strong Western Australian economy. 
 
I am looking forward to 2007 with significant capital redevelopment underway at a number of 
campuses.  These redevelopments will not only change Central TAFE, they will strengthen the 
College’s position at the forefront of vocational training in Western Australia. 
 
I would like to congratulate staff on an outstanding year and thank them for their efforts and 
support for the changes we are making to the way we work and I look forward to the challenges in 
the year ahead.  
 
It is with pride that I present Central TAFE’s 2006 Annual Report.  
 
 
 

 
 
Neil Fernandes 
A/Managing Director 
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College Vision and Values 
 
Vision 
 
Central TAFE aims to be recognised as an innovative, creative and sought after deliverer of 
vocational education and training solutions locally, nationally and internationally 
 
Values 
 
Central TAFE has developed a set of seven values to assist in obtaining the College’s vision.  
These values underpin the development of all College products and services and include: 
 
Accountability  
We recognise the right of our students, industry, government and the community to scrutinise, 
challenge, and call us to account for our actions and behaviour.  
 
Customer Service 
We value the trust and satisfaction of our customers and will endeavour to provide services that 
meet their expectations. 
 
Integrity 
We will act honestly and with integrity. 
 
Openness 
We will be honest with each other and with our customers and will communicate directly and 
openly. 
 
Respect for the rights of others 
We will treat our staff and students as we would like to be treated ourselves.  
 
Excellence 
We are committed to excellence in all that we do and will recognise excellent performance by staff 
and students within the College. 
 
Environmental Awareness 
We are aware of the fragility of the environment and will work towards sustaining it both through 
the programs that we deliver and our practices.  
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Overview of Central TAFE 
 
Central TAFE provides quality vocational education and training to around 26,000 students each 
year. The College has been a major contributor to the economic development of the broader 
community, assisting people in becoming job-ready and prepared to meet the challenges of the 
workplace. 

Central TAFE has a history spanning over 100 years, making it the oldest non-compulsory 
education institution in Western Australia. 'Perth Technical School' as it was originally known, held 
its first classes on 16 May 1900.  

Central TAFE comprises four main campuses within a six-kilometre radius of the Perth central 
business district.  It is a registered training organisation offering more than 200 fully accredited 
award courses within the Australian Qualifications Framework. 
 
The College predominantly offers Certificate IV, Diploma and Advanced Diploma courses and 
provides a range of customised fee-for-service training courses. 
 
Courses are delivered in the following areas: 
• Art, Design and Media 
• Health, Community Services, Tourism & Languages 
• Engineering, Technology & Business 
 
The College exports training programs to countries such as China (including Hong Kong), Kuwait, 
and Taiwan, supporting the Government’s policy direction of establishing Western Australia as an 
international education hub.  Central TAFE averages around 1000 onshore and 1900 offshore 
international student enrolments each year. 
 
In addition to government purchased training, which is Central TAFEs core business, the College 
provides quality fee-for-service training and customised enterprise training to a variety of public 
and private organisations. 
 
Central TAFE is highly responsive and well connected to industry. Its courses are practical and job 
focused and its method of operation is student-focused and driven by employment outcomes.   
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Plan and Priorities 2006 – 2010 
 
The following goals have been established for the College over the next five years.  
 
Students – we will: 

• better understand and respond to our current and future students’ needs and aspirations; 
• provide targeted student services and support; and 
• involve students in decision making. 

 
Industry and Community – we will: 

• focus on selected industries and enterprises to increase their engagement with, and 
commitment to training, including employment based training; 

• strengthen our engagement with, and commitment to Indigenous students, communities 
and enterprises; and 

• make a positive contribution to communities through building relationships and pathways. 
 
Creative Teaching and Learning – we will: 

• review and reinvigorate training delivery to meet changing market and student needs; 
• give greater emphasis to workplace training and assessment; 
• reinvigorate the College’s approach to, and involvement in, recognition of prior learning, 

pathways for students and community education; and 
• provide academic leadership through practical research, rigour and inventiveness. 

 
Pathways and Partnerships – we will: 

• respond to the Western Australian Certificate of Education (WACE); 
• partner with schools and the Department of Education and Training on school retention and 

pathways for school students; and 
• investigate opportunities for complementary, concurrent and articulated awards with 

universities. 
 
College Capability – we will: 

• capitalise and build on our academic strengths and expertise; 
• nurture, support and develop skilled VET professional practitioners; 
• invest in content development; 
• configure our capital infrastructure program, to best respond to the needs of industry and 

communities, and 
• build our capability through involvement in international activities  
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Central TAFE reflected on its achievements, challenges and issues for the year within the context 
of its 2006 College Plan and Priorities. The five key goal areas, outlined in the College Plan, lay 
the foundation for the way business is organised.   The five key goal areas are:  
 

• Students 
• Industry, Community & Government 
• Creative Teaching & Learning 
• Pathways & Partnerships 
• College Capability 

 
The performance indicators reveal that Central TAFE made significant progress towards 
achievement of its targets and goals in 2006. The five goal areas will provide the focus for the 
College activities for 2007, with actions and strategies updated and redefined to meet current 
challenges and issues.   
 
The details of the achievements, challenges and issues for Central TAFE in 2006 are embedded 
throughout the Annual Report, with a summary provided below.  
 

5 Key Goal Areas Outcomes for Central TAFE 2006 
 

 In keeping with the tradition of acknowledging student achievements, a number 
of students from across portfolio areas were nominated for various state and 
national awards during 2006. Ms Nadine Johnson received the Indigenous 
Trainee Award of the Year at the 2006 WA Training Awards presentation.  

 
 Engaging students in key decision making forums was also a priority for the 

College. Ms Tracey-Lee Edwards, an Indigenous part time student in Diploma of 
Event Management, was nominated for membership of the College Governing 
Council for three years, and will take up this role at the beginning of 2007.   

Students 
 

 Significant improvements were made to the quality and consistency of student 
information, including website information, brochures and career advice 
services.  

 

 
  A priority for Central TAFE during 2006 has been to grow the number of 

apprenticeships and traineeships across the college. There were 747 
apprentices and trainees with active training contracts in 2006.  In addition, 
cadetships in the Diploma of Engineering were promoted to key industry 
stakeholders in piping, mechanical and structural engineering. Given the keen 
industry interest in this initiative, the College will see a growth in cadetships 
across a number of industry areas in 2007.  

 
Industry, 

Community & 
Government  

  The participation, retention and success of Indigenous students at Central TAFE 
was a focus in 2006. Enrolments of Indigenous students increased from 85 in 
2005 to 138 in 2006. Further improvements are expected in 2007 with the 
appointment of a mentor for Indigenous students who will be located at 
Leederville campus. 

 
 

  
   

  A Community Learning and Partnerships team has been created and 
relationships with community partners established, including the City of Perth, 
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5 Key Goal Areas Outcomes for Central TAFE 2006 
Town of Vincent, City of Stirling, State Library of WA and the Ellenbrook Cultural 
Foundation in 2006. A number of projects are planned for 2007, as is a new 
website outlining short courses.  In addition, the College has strengthened its 
capacity to identify and respond to new funding opportunities. 

 

 
 The College increased flexible delivery opportunities across all study areas  in 

2006. 
 

 Investigating, developing and supporting Employment Based Training (EBT) 
was also a focus in 2006.  A work-based delivery model was developed and 
implemented for Community Services (Disability) training with Nulsen Haven, 
Hills and Crosslinks. In addition, an innovative training delivery approach to 
address skills shortages in the areas of Engineering, Design and Drafting was 
implemented. Creative 

Teaching & 
Learning 

 
 The College will actively review employment based training models to address 

employer needs as a priority in 2007. 
 

 The number of people seeking Skills Recognition (SR), as a component of 
assessment towards a qualification, increased during 2006.  Further 
development of SR is expected in 2007.  In addition there will be a focus on 
promoting the use of skills sets and dual certification to improve pathways for 
students. 

 
 Academic Leadership was more defined and sharper focussed with principal 

lecturers taking a leading role across their portfolios in 2006.   
 

 
 The College improved its VET in Government Schools delivery by 32% in 2006. 

A total of 417 school students from 28 schools accessed the VET in Schools 
programs.  

 
 Fee for service training was provided to 9 private schools, and auspicing 

arrangements were formalised for 21 schools.  
 Pathways & 

Partnerships 
 The College contributed to the schools Education and Training Participation 

Plans for 2007 – 2008 by working with school Education District Offices and 
developed local community partnerships through Western Careers Alliance and 
Swan Alliance to improve the participation, retention and pathways for 13 – 19 
year olds. 

 
 Central TAFE continued its efforts to increase the number of articulated 

qualifications and improve pathway opportunities for TAFE students, with the 
University of WA, Curtin University, Edith Cowan University and Murdoch 
University. 
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5 Key Goal Areas Outcomes for Central TAFE 2006 
 

 The College continued to invest in its people and its products to build capacity 
and develop skilled VET professionals.  A whole-of-college professional 
development day was held in December and received positive feedback from 
academic and non-academic staff.  At least one whole-of-college activity is 
proposed each year. 

 
 In 2006, Central TAFE allocated $100,000 to support the development of 

learning materials, with 13 projects funded. Products used in both face to face 
and online learning were developed with an emphasis on Employment Based 
Training (EBT), work based delivery and new areas of delivery. 

 
 International activities increased significantly in 2006.  Over 800 international 

students engaged in full-time study, 515 of whom studied for mainstream 
vocational qualifications.  Approximately 1900 students studied offshore, mainly 
in China (including Hong Kong), Kuwait, and Taiwan.   College 

Capability  
 The Adult Migrant English Language Program (AMEP) continued to provide 

English language programs to new arrivals, with an increase of 4.9% on 
2004/05 figures and almost 20% above Department of Immigration and 
Citizenship (DIAC) predicted figures.  

 
 Construction of new facilities to accommodate printing, jewellery and computing 

will be completed in 2007. 
 

 Detailed designs for new facilities in Aberdeen Street are completed, with the 
tender expected to be granted mid-2007 and construction to begin soon after.  

 
 An upgrade to the Music Skills Centre at Leederville is almost completed and 

staff and student areas at Perth campus have been refurbished for the 
beginning of the 2007 year. 
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Agency Goals and Key Priorities 
 
These goals have been set by the Department of Education and Training in the context of overall 
priorities for the sector.  
 
 

 
Agency Goals and Key Priorities 

 
Outcomes 

Increase apprenticeships and 
traineeships in conjunction with 

appropriate branches of the 
Department of Education and Training 

 
⇒ Central TAFE is committed to increasing 

apprenticeships and traineeships from a base of 
529 in the June quarter 2004 to 657 by June 
2009, with an emphasis on apprenticeships in 
traditional trades. In 2006 there were 747 
apprentices and trainees with active training 
contracts. 

 

Increase number of Indigenous 
students enrolled in employment 

based outcomes (Certificate III and 
above) from a base of 83 in 2004 to 124 

by 2009 

 
⇒ Central TAFE set a target of 93 Indigenous 

students to be enrolled in employment based 
outcomes (Certificate III and above) in 2005/2006. 
As at the end of December 2006, there were 96 
course enrolments by Indigenous students at 
Certificate III or IV and 38 course enrolments at 
Diploma level. 

 

Ensure all new and existing TAFEWA 
permanent and contract lecturers, as 

minimum, hold a Certificate IV in 
Training and Assessment or equivalent 

 
⇒ Central TAFE committed to ensure eligible 

lecturers not holding Certificate IV in Training and 
Assessment or equivalent, would be up-skilled. As 
at December 2006, 9 lecturers had completed 
their studies in the Essential Skills Internship 
Program. One person has carried over into 2007, 
4 are eligible for the qualification and 6 have 
completed half and are due to complete fully in 
June 2007. 
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Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich (to 16 December 
2006) 

Hon Mark McGowan MLA 
Minister for Education & Training 

Central TAFE Governing Council 

Mr Neil Fernandes 
Acting Managing Director 

Ms Anne Blythman 
Executive Director 

Health, Community Services, 
 Tourism & Languages 

Mr John Davies (to 27 October 2006) 
Executive Director 

Art, Design & Media 

Mr Gary Fitzgerald 
General Manager 

College Development 

Ms Gail Mitchell 
General Manager 
College Services 

Mr Kevin Chennell 
Executive Director 

Engineering, Technology & 
Business 

Responsibilities 
 

Foundation Studies 
Health, Sport & Lifestyle 

Education & Community Services 
Tourism & Languages 

Adult Migrant English Program 
Read Write Now 

 
 

Responsibilities 
 

Art 
Design 
Media 

Art Gallery 
 

Responsibilities 
 

Community Learning & 
Partnerships 

Student Resources 
Student Administration Systems 

College and Student 
Communications 

International Centre 
International Market Development 
Infrastructure & Redevelopment 

Responsibilities 
 

Financial Services 
Infrastructure & Information 

Systems Management 
Information Systems 
Human Resources 

Profile Planning and Research 
Facilities Site Services 

Responsibilities 
 

Business & Management 
Finance & Property Services  
Information Communications 

Technology  
Materials, Manufacturing, 

Engineering & Construction 
Science, Resources & 

Environment 
 

Learning Portfolio 
Managers x 12 
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Establishment of the College  
 
Central TAFE was established as a statutory authority on 1 January 1997, under section 35 of the 
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996. The College is a body corporate with the College 
Governing Council established as the accountable authority.  
 
Central TAFE is responsible to the Hon Mark McGowan MLA, Minister for Education and Training 
(replacing the Hon Ljiljanna Ravlich, from 16 December 2006), with the primary purpose of 
delivering vocational education and training, and other related activities determined by the Minister. 
 
Governing Council 
 
The College Governing Council consists of a Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson, the Managing 
Director, and between six and 10 other members, who are appointed by the Minister for Education 
and Training for their expertise in education and training, industry or community affairs and for their 
ability to contribute to the strategic direction of the College. 
 
Whilst the Managing Director has responsibility for the day-to-day operations, the Governing 
Council oversees the strategic and overall direction of the College through the execution of its 
statutory functions, within the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996, the Public Sector 
Management Act 1994 and the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985. 
 
As at 31 December 2006, the Membership of the Central TAFE Governing Council was: 
 

Name Position Expiration of Term 

Dr Debra Rosser Chair Person 30 June 2008 

Ms Glenda Martinick Deputy Chairperson 31 December 2009 

Mr Noel Bridge Member 30 June 2008 

Mr Kelvin Leek Member 31 December 2008 

Ms Jacqueline Quantock Member 31 December 2008 

Ms Marita Walker Member 30 June 2009 

Dr Steve Harvey Member 31 December 2009 

Ms Susan Haynes Member 31 December 2008 

Ms Pat Salay Member 30 June 2008 

Mr Terry Boland Member 31 December 2008 

Ms Stephanie Faulkner Member 30 June 2009 

Mr Neil Fernandes Ex-officio Member  
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OUR STUDENTS 
 
In 2006, over 26,000 students attended a course at Central TAFE. The largest number of students 
was in the 15 – 19 years age group, with most students studying full time. On average across all 
age groups, 57% of students studying at Central TAFE are female and 43% male.  
 

 
Qualifications 

2% of the delivery in 2006 was in courses at Certificate III and above, with 18% of training effort in 

 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

% of Total Student  
Population 

14 or under 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30 - 39 40 - 49 50 - 59 60+

Age Group

Central TAFE Student Population by Age Group and Gender 

Male Students in Age Group
Female Students in Age Group

 
8
entry level and foundation programs, that is Certificates I and II. 

 
 
 Qualifications Levels Studied at Central TAFE

 

18% 

34% 48% 

 Certificate I & II

Certificate III & IV 

  Diploma & Advanced
  Diploma

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2006 0.5% of Central TAFE students 

 

ntral TAFE is committed to 
nous 

, 

 
In 
identified themselves as being 
Indigenous; with 4% of students
recording they had a disability.  
 
Ce
increasing the number of Indige
students and students with disabilities
and this will continue to be a priority for 
2007.  
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What we offer our students 
 
Central TAFE has a diverse student population made up of local and international students. Local 

• labour market entrants 

 university 

ers 

 
entral TAFE provides vocational education and training products within the Australia Qualification 

a and 

 accordance with Government policy, Central TAFE offers specialised preparatory studies for 

he College is committed to involving and consulting with the student body. It receives feedback 

students undertaking studies at the College are classified by their objective for undertaking study 
as: 
 

• apprentices / trainees 
• career changers 
• seeking pathways to
• skill improvers 
• bridgers 
• skill develop
• self employed 

C
Framework (AQF), consisting of Training Packages and courses that are accredited with the 
Training Accreditation Council (TAC). The College predominantly offers Certificate IV, Diplom
Advanced Diploma Courses, and provides a range of customised fee-for-service training courses. 
 
In
youth, people from non-English speaking backgrounds, Indigenous people and students with 
disabilities. 
 
T
on the services it provides from the annual Student Satisfaction Survey, student focus groups and 
the Modular Completion Survey for each module of competency completed. Central TAFE has a 
Complaints Policy and Procedure and a dedicated Complaints Officer.  
 
 
 
  

tudent Satisfaction  

• In 2006 the college had an overall student satisfaction rating of 85.8% up from 

 
 76.4% of graduates were in employment as at 31 May 2006 

 86.3% of graduates fully or partly achieved their main reason for undertaking 

Source: Central TAFE Key Performance Indicator Report 2006 

 S
  
 
 82.6% in 2005 
 
 •
  
 •
 their course  
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OUR PEOPLE 
 
Total number of staff at Central TAFE as at December 2006 was 1832. 52% were permanent or 
contract employees, and 48% casual employees. Of the permanent/contract employees 80% were 
full-time and 20% part-time (see chart). 
 
 Full-time and Part-time Staff 

80% 

20%
Full-time (Perm/Contract) 
Part-time (Perm/Contract) 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Of the casual workforce, males comprised 38%, females 62%   
• 53% were academic staff academic and 47% non academic 
• Of the permanent/contract workforce, males comprised 42%, females 58% (see chart) 

 
Female and Male Staff

42%

58% 

Male (Perm/Contract)

Female (Perm/Contract)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• The following chart signifies the diversity groups among permanent/contract staff in 2006 

  
Diversity of Workforce 

2% 9%
3%

32%
53% 

1%

Disability

Indigenous 
Ethnicity

Youth < 25 
55 Years + 
Other 
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ACADEMIC 
 
There are three academic areas across the College.  Each academic area comprises a number of 
study areas under a portfolio arrangement.  In total there are 12 portfolios, as outlined below. 

 
Indigenous students, Onshore 

International students, 
Trainee/Apprentice students and 
VET in School students are high 
priority areas for the College. The 

Government sets target numbers for 
these groups (except international 

students) 

Student Curriculum  
Hours (SCH)  

 is a measure of Central 
TAFE teaching delivery 

effort 
  

  

 
NB: The sum of the portfolio figures is greater than the total because students can be enrolled in more than 
one portfolio 

 

  
 

 
No of 

Indigenous 
Students 

No of Onshore 
International 

Students 

No of Trainee / 
Apprentice 
Students 

No of VET in 
School 

Students 
Student 

Curriculum Hours Academic Areas & 
Portfolios   

Art, Design and 
Media             
Art  331,765  17 28 24 19 
Design   513,478  4 71 58 72 
Media  531,312  5 69 3 62 
Engineering, 
Technology and 
Business             
Business & Public 
Management  524,470  38 148 284 10 
Finance & Property 
Services  478,857  9 48 47 0 
Information 
Communications 
Technology  409,296  2 60 5 134 
Materials, 
Manufacturing, 
Engineering & 
Construction  684,940  9 82 82 24 
Science, Resources 
& Environment  405,228  9 15 52 0 
Health, Community 
Services, Tourism 
and Languages             
Education & 
Community Services  727,712  11 100 106 42 
Foundation 
Programs  499,733  20 71 0 0 
Health, Sport & 
Lifestyle  635,184  6 31 73 36 
Tourism & 
Languages  653,205  17 58 35 23 
        
AMEP     7   
ELICOS       639     
TOTAL  6,395,180  138 1,262 747 417 
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Art, Design and Media 
 
The Executive Director of Art, Design and Media was accountable for the achievement of the 
College goals and priorities in the following key areas: 
 

• Art Gallery 
• Art 
• Design 
• Media 

 
 
 
Art Gallery 

• The Central TAFE Art Gallery continues to play an important role in campus life attracting 
students, the public, tourists and schools into the Gallery.   

 
• The graduation exhibitions in December showcased the high standard of work from our Art 

Design and Media Schools.  
 

• The Gallery program for 2006 included 12 exhibitions, an art auction, and 4 artist-in-
residence projects.  

 
• A major exhibition exploring artworks from the Sue and Ian Berndt Collection had a strong 

Indigenous focus, while one of the year’s highlights was the residency and exhibition of the 
Looma artists from the Kimberley region. 

 
• In collaboration with the City of Perth, Central TAFE presented the inaugural Perth and 

Taipei Sister City Artist Exchange Project and worked with the Japan Foundation to 
celebrate the Australia Japan Year of Exchange. 

 
• Collaborations included PICA, Curtin University and the Department of Education and 

Training.   
 

• The College showcase gallery, on the corner of Beaufort and Aberdeen Streets, hosted a 
number of lively exhibitions, film festivals and happenings through the year, and showed its 
potential as a flexible space enhancing the street exposure.  
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Art 
 
Central TAFE, as Western Australia’s oldest visual art tertiary education institution has secured a 
reputation for delivering skills and knowledge with a vocational focus.  Its enrichment program 
supports visiting lecturers, workshops and special events which expose students to current best 
practice in the visual arts. 
 
The Art portfolio delivers a range of programs in Visual Art, Contemporary Craft, Arts 
Administration, Jewellery, Fashion and Textile Design. 
 
 
Meeting Government Priorities 
 

• Students completed a sculpture camp at Hartley Estate north of Perth, with the large 
sculptures now a permanent fixture at the Estate  

 
• Susan Flavell, lecturer in sculpture received an Australian Council Grant  

 
• Alex Spremberg , lecturer in painting accepted an artist in residence program in  

Switzerland in Semester 2  
 

• End-of-year student exhibitions now have pride of place at premises of the Melville City 
Council. The City Council purchased $6000 of student art work, for their Civic Centre 
grounds and offices 

 
• Jewellery students were invited to exhibit their work in the Moore Building in Fremantle, 

exposing them to industry and potential buyers 
 

• Graduates from Fashion and Textile Design showed their work at a parade in Perth City 
Town Hall at the end of 2006, attended by industry representatives.  The event organisers 
attracted critical acclaim  

 
• A purpose-built facility for Jewellery Design and the Jewellery Apprentice program, 

currently due for completed in 2007, will provide students with state-of-the-art facilities, 
linked closely with industry 

 
• Staff – in association with ARTSWA, Ford Model Management and Austrade, has obtained 

a grant to promote fashion textile marketing label Ae’lkemi at New York Fashion Week. 
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Design 
 
The Design portfolio delivers a range of programs in Design for Industry, Furniture Design,  Interior 
Design, Interior Decoration, Certificate III in Design Fundamentals, Graphic Design, Printing and 
Graphic Arts. 
 
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• Exhibitions of student work held at the end of the year, gave the students an opportunity to 
exhibit their work, and a chance for students to meet prospective employers. More than 
75% of students were offered employment  

 
• International design students benefited from articulation arrangements with Curtin 

University  
 

• The new print facilities in Northbridge will give students and lecturers access to facilities 
second to none in the print industry.  

 
• 72 high school students completed the VET in Schools Certificate II in Design. 

 
• 58 apprentices and trainees enrolled or completed their training in print machining areas in 

2006 
 

• Young people at educational risk completed a graphic design short training course which 
offered pathway opportunities to further training in design areas  

 
• A skate board design competition was organised by Design students, and followed by a 

public auction of the skate boards  
 

• Brett Whitehead, student in Design was nominated for the Design for Industry Awards  
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Media 
 
The Media portfolio delivers a range of training programs from Certificate II to Advanced Diploma 
level in a variety of communications and entertainment industries that include Contemporary 
Music, Photography, Film and Television and New Media including animation. 
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• New courses developed in 2006 for commencement in the 2007 academic year include the 
Certificate III in Broadcasting (Radio) and two new animation courses at Certificate IV and 
Diploma level. 

 
• 2006 was the tenth anniversary of the successful Music Skills program area, which was 

celebrated by the production of a CD of student work and featured on the cover of “Groove” 
magazine. 

 
• International and local students, together with lecturers from the Film and Television 

program area filmed on location in the Gin Gin region during the term break and produced 
documentaries on The International Gravity Centre, the Gin Gin water lands, Seabird and 
the region generally.  

 
• Students from the film and TV program area produced two commercials as part of a joint 

initiative by the Office of Road Safety, Channel 10, Nova 93.7, X-Press Magazine and 
Movies by Burswood.  

 
• Central TAFE Screen students worked in conjunction with EPRA to produce a series of 

short films in support of the brand identity developed for the New Northbridge project.  
 

• Music students organised, promoted and performed lunchtime shows at local high schools 
including Shenton College, Canningvale College, Morley Senior High School and Aranmore 
College.  

 
• Two Central TAFE students from the Photography course travelled with their lecturer Chris 

Rowett to the Nanjing Institute of Visual Arts in China.  
 

• Central TAFE received a special purpose grant to deliver Certificate II in Screen to a group 
of Indigenous students in partnership with Swan View Senior High School. 

 
• Central TAFE band “The Fault” played at The Big Day Out in 2006 and were nominated for 

a 2006 WAMI award for most promising new act. 
 

• Photography students entered the National Ilford Photographic Competition and received 
five awards.  
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Engineering Technology and Business 
 
The Executive Director, Engineering Technology and Business was accountable for the 
achievement of the College goals and priorities in the following key areas. 
 

• iVEC 
• KT Studio 
• Business and Management 
• Finance and Property Services 
• Information, Communication & Technology 
• Materials Manufacturing Engineering and Construction 
• Sciences, Resources and Environment 

 
iVEC 
 

• iVEC is an unincorporated joint venture established to stimulate and support the uptake of 
high performance computing (HPC), visualisation, grid technologies and data storage in 
Western Australia and to link to national and international strategies and networks in these 
fields.  iVEC partners include CSIRO, the University Of  Western Australia , Curtin 
University, Murdoch University and Central TAFE.   

 
• Central TAFE takes a leading role in technical diffusion for iVEC through the Industry and 

Government Uptake Program in iVEC.  This Program aims to stimulate the uptake and use 
of HPC in industry and government agencies.  In 2006 the Industry Uptake Grant Scheme 
in iVEC funded and managed several innovative uptake projects including medical and 
mining visualisation and software interface development projects.  

 
• iVEC supported the development  of a drill rig simulator in association with the Mineral 

Drilling Association of Australia, the funding of a Central TAFE intern in animation 
rendering, the rendering of a digital dome theatrical movie with Raging Pixels, the storage 
of satellite data and the porting of parallel commercial simulation code.  Central TAFE 
students and staff were engaged in several of these projects and participated in training 
needs analysis for the HPC industry and training programs held at eCentral Campus.   The 
iVEC infrastructure, connected to eCentral Campus, was used for student and staff data 
storage and access and for an online delivery pilot of engineering courses to the Australian 
College of Kuwait. 

  
 
KT Studio 
 

• KT Studio has established an international reputation over 4 years for leading edge 
research and prototyping as an applied research group in Central TAFE. This work 
continued in the education sector and beyond in a series of projects undertaken through 
2006 with the Department of Education and Training, various universities, government 
agencies and commercial organizations. 

 
• Projects have included the establishment of a Professional Learning Institute collaboration 

space for teachers, a network of leaders in rural WA, an innovation and networking 
environment for education researchers throughout Australia and new approaches for  
e-learning and e-research.  

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 21 of 86



CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 
 

Business and Management 
 
The Business and Management Learning portfolio offers a range of business qualifications and 
courses ranging from Certificate III to Advanced Diploma level. Qualifications offered include a 
diverse range of specialist areas including Administration, Management, Marketing, Human 
Resources, Public Relations, Frontline Management, Advertising, Purchasing, Occupational Health 
and Safety and Project Management.  
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• Along with the very strong full time/part time institutional enrolments there was a continued 
growth in Traineeships in Certificate III and IV in Business. 

 
• An increase in demand for Project Management courses led to the Certificate IV in Project 

Management being offered in mid term Semester 2. 
 
• A Diploma in Business (Quality Auditing) was delivered to meet the high demand in the 

area. 
 

• Strong links with public sector organisations (e.g. Department of Planning and 
Infrastructure and the Western Australian Police Service) and private organisations through 
Traineeships. 

 
• In collaboration with the City of Perth and a variety of businesses in Northbridge, the 

Northbridge Youth Enterprise and Entrepreneurship was established. 
 

• 2 lecturers completed the Train the Trainer Certificate II in Entrepreneurship and Enterprise 
Skills enabling them to deliver the Certificate II to young people who have been identified 
as being educationally at risk and likely to cease their schooling prematurely. 

 
• The portfolio also has a very strong VET in Schools program offering Certificate III in 

Business to northern suburbs private schools through Career Link.  
 
• The Business and Management portfolio is leading the way with an exponential growth in 

Traineeships in the Certificate III and IV in Business, establishing and maintaining strong 
links with both the public and private sector. 

 
• Nadine Johnson, an Indigenous Business Management trainee, received the Aboriginal and 

Torres Strait Islander Student of the Year award at the WA Training Awards evening. 
Nadine is an employee of the Department for Planning and Infrastructure in Mandurah and 
undertakes her traineeship on the job.  
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Finance and Property Services 
The Finance & Property Services Learning portfolio consists of three major professional business 
areas: Accounting/Finance, Real Estate & Conveyancing and Legal. Courses were provided at all 
levels with time frames to suit the many different requirements of school leavers, trainees,  
employers, career developers, professional developers, and licensing boards, from fast-track non-
accredited courses to two year nationally accredited courses. 
 
The area also offered a range of courses commercially, which met the educational requirements 
for registration and licensing under Western Australian Legislative and Industry Board Guidelines.   
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• Four new legal courses were offered in 2006: Certificate IV & Diploma in Business (Legal 
Studies) and Certificate IV and Diploma in Law Enforcement.   

 
• Several legal courses were reaccredited and approved by the Training Accreditation 

Council, to include grading criteria specific to each subject.   
 
• To address a skill shortage of qualified conveyancers, a fast track commercial Licensing 

Course was approved by the Settlement Agents Supervisory Board to be commenced early 
in 2007.   

 
• The contract with the Department of the Attorney General was approved for the training of 

Justices of the Peace. 
 
• Delivered customised 10 week courses to legal staff from the Department of Land 

Information on four occasions during the year. 
 
• Students had work experience at the Perth Money Conference with written findings 

submitted as part of their assessment 
 

• Significant progress has been made with Edith Cowan and Murdoch universities to develop 
pathways for Central TAFE students. 

 
• Zhejiang Financial Professional College (China) contracted for the Certificate IV and 

Diploma in Financial Services (Financial Planning). 
 

• The Certificate IV in Property (Real Estate), a new traineeship in Real Estate, was popular 
with trainees with numbers exceeding expectations.   

 
• The annual Business Awards night, held in June, provided an opportunity to for students, 

staff, families and industry guests to celebrate their achievements. 
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Information Communications Technology 
 
The Information Communications Technology portfolio covers the disciplines of Electronic 
Systems, Computer Systems, Renewable Energy, Telecommunications and Information 
Technology.  
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• The Information Technology Training Package was endorsed and lecturers devoted 
considerable effort toward preparing the delivery and assessment materials for the new 
Certificate III, IV and Diploma qualifications for 2007 delivery. These qualifications include 
the latest technologies and skill sets and enable the portfolio to address skill shortage 
areas, at the para-professional level. 

 
• Lecturer, Mark Shuttleworth, undertook a return to industry with the Western Australian 

Police Service. Mark assisted in implementing the new Western Australian Police Service 
digital radio communication network system, and received special recognition from the 
Inspector in charge of the project.  

 
• A new partnership with Career Link has been forged for VET in Schools classes in both 

Information Technology and Electronic Engineering to commence in 2007. 
 
• Information Technology and Electronic Engineering continue to have close articulation 

arrangements, with Edith Cowan, Murdoch and Curtin universities. 
 

• Electrotechnology (a skills shortage area) was targeted by industry with the portfolio having 
many full time students offered employment before finishing their qualifications.  

 
• A significant VET in Schools program conducted at the Kent Street Senior College 

culminated in a joint Central TAFE/Kent Street Senior College display at the Red Bull Air 
Race in November 2006. 

 
• Workshops and laboratory equipment have been modified to allow students with a disability 

to participate in the courses. 
 

• An Information Technology student won the PORT 80 Best Website Design award from a 
field which included industry, university and both public and private Registered Training 
Organisations (RTO) entrants. 

 
• Air Services Australia awarded a $3000 scholarship to an Electronic Engineering student, 

Mr Corey Stokes, to continue with his full time studies in 2007. 
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Materials, Manufacturing, Engineering and Construction 
 
Materials, Manufacturing, Engineering and Construction provides training for essential and high 
demand occupations including Civil and Mechanical Engineering and Drafting, Building and 
Architectural Design and Technology, and Plastics and Materials. 
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• The Building and Architectural Design study area hosted the National Building Studies 
Conference in October. Thirty nine local and interstate lecturing staff and portfolio 
managers met to discuss the state of the industry and the future of training in Building and 
Architectural Design and Technology. 

 
• Five new accredited courses were introduced in Civil Engineering Drafting and Design. 

 
• For the first time a national training package was introduced for Mechanical high level 

courses. 
 

• An accredited course for the Diploma in Builder’s Registration was developed, with newly 
announced national accredited units included later. 

 
• The portfolio is often the only provider of higher level qualifications within its scope in WA.  

This training has proved to be an attractive option for international students.   
 
• The portfolio’s high regard within industry is evidenced by the large number of requests for 

new staff from employers, and that jobs boards constantly bear new offerings for Central 
TAFE students. 

 
• A partnership with the Department of Housing and Works was established to develop a new 

Advanced Diploma of Building Surveying in 2007. 
 

• Cadetships in the Diploma in Engineering – Technical were successfully promoted to 
industry. 

 
• Elissa Bosveld won the Building Designers of Western Australia awards.  

 
• Chris Drury won the Australian Institute of Building Designers Student Award. 
 
• An innovative training delivery approach was developed and implemented in the skills 

shortage area of Engineering, Design and Drafting.  
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Science, Resources and Environment 
 
The Science Resources and Environment portfolio provides practical training for a range of 
occupations supporting the resources and allied sectors including Laboratory Technologies, 
Surveying, Mining and Environmental Science. 
 
Meeting Government Priorities 
 

• A Minerals Sector Innovation Project funded by the Department of Education was 
undertaken in 2006.  This collaborative project aimed to develop new ways for TAFE to 
respond to the severe skills shortages in the resources sector and to build pathways and 
new courses.  Collaborators in the project included the Chamber of Minerals and Energy, 
Curtin University, the Resources and Infrastructure Industry Skills Council (RIISC), the 
Department of Industry and Resources, several major resource sector companies and the 
TAFE network.    

 
• A major event to build on and recognise the resources sector support for the College was 

held in November 2006 at eCentral Campus.  Over 60 resource sector industry 
representatives attended the event.  

 
• BHP sponsored a trip for lecturers and students to a mine site for students’ work site 

experience.  
 
• The Spatial Surveying study area has established a partnership with the Polytechnic School 

in Laos.  The region was in desperate need of equipment and training to support their 
fledging surveying industry. Central TAFE lecturers travelled to Laos to teach surveying 
students and donated computer and printing equipment, providing the extended community 
with skilled workers. 

 
• Articulation agreements with the University of Western Australia, Murdoch, Edith Cowan 

and Curtin universities, gave students the opportunity to further their studies at university 
level.  

 
• Skills shortage training and traineeship delivery was expanded.  Surveying student intake 

grew 30% on 2005 numbers to meet demand and industry need. 
 

• College contribution to supporting industry based training and expansion of traineeships 
was recognised when Western Geotechnics was awarded the State Training Board Award 
for an employer of apprentices or trainees in 2006. 
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Community Services, Health, Tourism and Languages 
 
The Executive Director, Community Services, Health and Languages was accountable for 
achievement of the College goals and priorities in the following key areas: 
 

• Adult Migrant English Language Program (AMEP) 
• Read Write Now! 
• Education and Community Services  
• Foundation Programs 
• Health, Sport and Lifestyle 
• Tourism and Languages 

 
 
Adult Migrant English Program (AMEP)  

• During 2006, AMEP at Central TAFE continued to provide an innovative approach to best 
practice provision of English language and pathways to further study and employment for 
AMEP clients.  

• The AMEP Program presented its Annual Report to Department of Immigration and 
Citizenship (DIAC) for 2005 - 2006. This summarised the excellent performance of the 
program over the 12 months with 1091 students undertaking the program, 22.8% over the 
target set by DIAC. Satisfaction levels against a range of indicators averaging between 
94% and 99% were also noted.  

• Central TAFE hosted Australia’s AMEP National Conference for the first time from 5 -7 
October 2006. The conference, which was held at Central TAFE e-Central campus, was 
launched by the Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister for Immigration and Multicultural 
Affairs, The Honourable Andrew Robb AO MP.  

 
Read Write Now! 
Read Write Now! utilises the services of volunteer tutors to assist adults in the community who 
want to improve their literacy levels but who are reluctant to attend a formal training institution.  
 
In 2006, almost 700 volunteer tutors assisted over 800 students in 26 regions throughout Western 
Australia 
 

• The service is free of charge and is funded by Department of Education and Training and 
supported by Central TAFE.  

• An independent Student Satisfaction Survey showed a 98% satisfaction rate.  
• The Program won three awards at the statewide Adult Learner’s Week Awards night in 

September.  
• In December, Read Write Now! celebrated thirty years of service to the community at a gala 

function at Government House with the Minister attending. 
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Education and Community Services  
 
The Education and Community Services portfolio provides courses in a range of industry areas 
including Teacher Assistants, Mentoring, Out of School Care, Children’s Services, Aged Care, 
Disability Work, Youth Work, Juvenile Justice, Protective Care, Welfare Work, Mental Health, 
Alcohol and Other Drugs and Beauty Therapy. A variety of delivery options including project based, 
online and a blend of face to face and off campus have been designed to respond to industry 
needs and support learners undertake training on campus, remotely or in the work place. During 
2006 the portfolio significantly increased its focus on building relationships with industry and 
providing flexible solutions to meet their training needs.  
 
Meeting Government Priorities 
 

• Beauty Therapy ran a VET in Schools program for years 11/12 students at Sevenoaks 
Senior College. This program reflects a strong collaboration between staff from Central 
TAFE and Sevenoaks Senior College who have worked together to develop an integrated 
learning program for students.  

 
• As part of Mental Health Week, and as a result of a survey undertaken to examine the 

perception young people have of mental health issues, a group of Certificate III Youth Work 
students created a mural designed to dispel some of the myths connected with the illness 
and to get people thinking in more constructive terms.  

 
• Students studying in the Diploma of Community Welfare worked with the Town of Vincent 

on a research project related to seniors in the community. Students conducted research by 
consulting with the community and then working towards the implementation of a strategy 
to address needs identified.  

 
• Staff from Media, Community Services and Swan View Senior High School, completed the 

first stage of the Indigenous Screen project. This established the cultural context and 
prepared the delivery of the Certificate II Screen for a group of Indigenous youth at Swan 
View Senior High School, as well as the Certificate III Mentoring, Konga Moya Rang to staff 
and community members who will mentor students in the program.   

 
• The Education study area conducted the Certificate III in Mentoring with Certificate IV 

Teacher Assistants in conjunction with their normal program of study. As part of the 
program they mentored young Indigenous students from Bentley Primary School.  

 
            • Staff significantly expanded delivery of traineeships in Community Services (Disabilities) as well 

           as introducing a new traineeship.  This was identified as a growth area by the Department of 
           Education and Training who promoted this qualification for Career Advisors in both the education 
           and training sectors. Central TAFE has been nominated as the metropolitan RTO for training and 
           delivery in the area of Employment Services
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Health, Sport and Lifestyle  
 
The Health, Sport and Lifestyle portfolio provides courses in a range of industry areas including 
Sport and Recreation, Community Recreation, Outdoor Recreation, Fitness, Massage, Allied 
Health Services, Enrolled Nursing, Dental and Optical Studies. The portfolio works closely with the 
school sector, community groups and industry to provide a range of livework projects that enhance 
the learning experience of their students and improve pathways to employment. During 2006 the 
portfolio has significantly increased its focus on working closely with the schools sector to increase 
options and pathways available for students. 
 
Meeting Government Priorities  
 

• The Fitness study area, together with Disability Services completed a successful program 
for students with disabilities in association with the Fairholme Residents Support Group.   

 
• Certificate IV Fitness students ran a fitness program with two groups of students from Balga 

Youth and Inside Out, Outside In at City Beach. The groups comprised Indigenous students 
and students with learning difficulties.  

 
• Through links with Government agencies and the community the study areas conducted the 

following programs : 
o Adjusting to Baby and Change Program in conjunction with the Women’s Health 

Service which aimed to minimise the effects of postnatal depression and anxiety on 
women and their families 

o Aboriginal Grandparent Family Support Program which aimed to support and 
strengthen Aboriginal grandparents and their families through the generations 

o Spanish Speaking Seniors which aimed to provide support to a group of older 
people who had not mastered a good command of English and may be isolated in 
the community. 

o Go for Life designed to involve senior citizens in a fitness program, with over 80 
participants. 

 
• In conjunction with Peel District Education Office and Mandurah and Pinjarra Senior High 

Schools, the Sport and Recreation study area delivered a program in the Certificate II of 
Sport (Career Oriented Participation) to two groups of students that were identified as at 
risk.  

 
• Enrolled Nursing study area established a partnership with Marr Mooditj in 2006 and 

assisted Marr Mooditj staff prepare for the introduction of the Diploma of Enrolled Nursing.  
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Tourism and Languages  
 
The Tourism and Languages portfolio provides courses in a range of industry areas including 
Tourism, Events Management, Information Services, Languages, Interpreting and Auslan. 
Learners are supported to develop the skills and knowledge valued by employers through state of 
the art technology and simulated work environments that ensure graduates are work ready and 
highly sought after by industry. Over the last 12 months the portfolio has significantly increased its 
focus on expanding partnerships with industry in order to further strengthen pathways for 
graduates to employment. 
 
Meeting Government Priorities 
 

• Central Events and Tourism Solutions (CEATS) was launched on 4 July 2006.  Over 80 
industry representatives attended with several expressing an interest in working on projects 
for their organisations with future CEATS students. The delivery model proved very 
successful with students involved in livework projects for Wanneroo Shire Council,  
David Wirrpanda Association and the Shire of Mundaring. The second group of CEATS 
students completed their Diploma and/or Advanced Diploma qualifications at the end of 
2006.  

 
• In partnership with the Shire of Mundaring, the College has expanded on the CEATS 

concept, and involved Central TAFE students in the development of a new branding 
strategy for the Shire. 

 
• Languages study area experienced high demand for conversational language courses, 17 

languages were offered and 542 students completed courses. 
 

• Event Management students organised a Deaf Awareness Day at the College to raise 
awareness and promote the teaching of AUSLAN, Australian Sign Language. 

 
• Library studies introduced new curriculum and organised library work experience in both 

public and private libraries, for 42 students. 85% of the students received job placements 
 

• Partnering with Tourism WA, the College trained their managers in business planning, 
Occupational Health and Safety and legal compliance. 

 
• An important alliance has been established between the College and Meeting and Events 

Australia to connect industry and Central TAFE students.  
 

• Event Management students organised groups for the City to Surf fun run. 
 

• VET in Schools programs in Tourism involved 19 Year 12 students. 18 successfully 
completed their training.  Of these, four commenced traineeships in Tourism and seven 
continued on in other courses at Central TAFE. 

 
• VET in Schools programs in spoken languages were well received by high school students.  
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Foundation Studies  
 
The Foundation Studies portfolio provides a range of courses specifically designed to support 
students from disadvantaged groups into further study and/or employment. These courses have a 
focus on literacy and numeracy, English as a Second Language (ESL), and are designed to meet 
the needs of Indigenous students and students with a disability.  Delivery is customized to meet the 
individual needs of learners and have a strong focus on practical, project based activities that 
provide a vocational context, and a focus on literacy and numeracy development.  
 
Meeting Government Priorities 
 

• Projects included: 
o City of Stirling to support African Learners (CAT tender 2007).  
 
o Town of Vincent to trial the delivery of community sessions in Study Skills and 

Memory Skills. 
 

o Liaison with two local Indigenous groups, Googulgar and Koorlbardi, to develop 
community based projects.  

 
o Ellenbrook Community in a Menshed presentation as part of Adult Learners Week. 

 
o Footprints project involving 16 Indigenous students who completed competencies 

from Art and Beauty Therapy, and basic construction project work. Students in the 
construction component built a new pergola outside the Aboriginal Support Unit at 
Leederville and a limestone wall and paved area as part of upgrading works to the 
grounds of the Caretakers Cottage at John Forrest Senior High School. All students 
participated in an Art Exhibition of their work. The project was successful because of 
the involvement of local community members in mentoring and lecturing roles.  

 
• Foundation studies offered with disabilities small class sizes, excellent resources and 

experienced lecturers who work closely with specialist agencies.  Facilities include a 
practice office, practice retail shop, computer labs and upgraded horticulture facilities.  The 
Business, Horticulture and Retail courses included additional study skills support such as: 

o Workplace Literacy and Numeracy 
o Workplace requirements and job seeking skills 
o Introduction to computing 
o Tutorial support 
o Structure work placement 

 
 
• English second language (ESL) course are in high demand at the College.  Students often 

move from AMEP into ESL programs.  In 2006, the College successfully tendered to teach 
new arrivals in cultural and employment English in partnership with the City of Stirling. 
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ACADEMIC SUPPORT 

 
College Development 
 
The General Manager, College Development, was accountable for the achievement of the College 
goals and priorities in the following key areas. 
 
Key areas: 

• Central Development and Central Knowledge 
• Community Learning and Partnerships  
• College and Student Communications 
• International Centre (onshore) 
• International Market Development (offshore) 
• Infrastructure and Redevelopment 
• Student Resources  
• Student Administration Systems 

 
Key activities:  
 
VET in Schools 

• In 2006, the College improved its VET in Schools delivery by 32% from 42,411 SCH in 
2005 to 61,358 SCH in 2006. A total of 417 school students from 28 schools accessed the 
College’s VET in Schools programs.  

• Fee for Service training was provided to 9 private schools.  
• Auspicing arrangements were formalised for 21 schools.  

 
School Visits 

• Central TAFE provided information to 70 secondary schools in the metropolitan area.  
 
Curriculum Development  

• 24 qualifications were submitted for accreditation.  
• 100 course applications for addition within scope and extension to scope were developed 

and of the 43 qualifications due to expire, 28 were submitted for reaccreditation 
 
Central TAFE supported the VET Sector through ongoing management of the Central Curriculum 
Support Services Network (CSSN). The CSSN at Central TAFE is responsible for the maintenance 
of the following learning area sectors:  
• arts and entertainment 
• health and education 
• sport and recreation 
• computing and information technology 
• business and management 
• languages 
• science; technology and process manufacturing.  

 

Employment Based Training  

• Overall, the College improved its employment based training (EBT) delivery performance 
by 57% from 132,400 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) in 2005 to 208,500 SCH in 2006. 
The total number of students involved in employment based training was 747.  Plastics and 
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Rubber again produced consistent enrolments and Dental Technology continued to attract 
a large number of students.  

 
• To address a significant skills shortage area, the College worked closely with local 

government representatives on the development of a training delivery model to address the 
shortage of planners in local government. There have been negotiations with the 
Department of Education and Training to recognise Certificate III in Local Government 
(Planning) as a traineeship and 2007 will see the implementation of this program within 
many local government authorities.  

 
• Keen interest from industry stakeholders was shown in the Cadetships in the Diploma of 

Engineering – Technical.  Cadetships are an employment based training program, 
supported by a formal training contract and entered into by the cadet, the employer and 
Central TAFE. Cadets undertake a combination of work and TAFE based training over a 24 
month period. The model consists of the cadet undertaking a two week induction program 
at Central TAFE before the commencement of training.  

 
Community Learning and Partnerships  
The Community Learning and Partnerships team has been established. Key successes for this 
area in 2006 were: 

• Articulation of the College’s community learning capacity and aspirations, which included 
an invitation to present at the Learning Communities Network national conference. 

• Established strategic relationships with community partners: City of Perth, Town of Vincent, 
City of Stirling, State Library of WA and the Ellenbrook Cultural Foundation. 

• Developed a strategic approach to new funding opportunities, including tenders and grants. 
• Progressed the College History Project, included identifying the College’s heritage objects, 

in the Printing area at Wembley campus, and a concept interpretation plan for the 
Northbridge campus. 

 
Infrastructure and Redevelopment 
Major capital works undertaken during 2006 /2007 for Central TAFE by DET included: 
 

• Construction of new Industrial Arts facility to accommodate printing, jewellery and Apple 
Mac computing facilities.  Total budget for the project is $8.2m, with completion due in June 
2007. 

 
• Completion of the detailed design for a new facility on Aberdeen Street to accommodate 

engineering programs from Leederville and Subiaco, building studies and architectural 
drafting from Leederville and beauty therapy / massage programs from Mount Lawley.  
Included in the new facility will be a library (information commons) and Indigenous support 
centre. The project tender is expected to be let by mid-2007 with an anticipated 18 month 
construction period.  Project cost $48m. 

 
• Minor capital works undertaken during 2006 included:  

o An upgrade to the Music Skills centre at Leederville including new entrance and 
foyer. Completion date to be February 2007. Project cost $295,000. 

o Internal refurbishment of levels 4 and 5 staff areas at Perth campus. 
Project cost $140,000. 
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International Centre (onshore) 
2006 was significant for the International Centre, with over 1200 international students engaged in 
full-time study.  Approximately 515 studied mainstream vocational qualifications in Business & 
Management. Engineering and Financial Services grew by 56% from 2005. 
 
The International Centre generated gross revenue of over $3.8 million and added approximately 
$790,000 in net profit. As well as enriching the College’s multi-cultural learning environment, 
international students have been excellent ambassadors for Central TAFE and Western Australia. 
 
During 2006 the Centre:  

• Established the College as a member of Perth Education City (PEC), an agency 
responsible for marketing Perth’s education and training capabilities abroad, and assisted 
the Australian Council for Private Education and Training (ACPET) in accepting 
international students who were displaced as a result of a private RTO ceasing to operate.  

 
• Operated as an International English Language Testing System (IELTS) Test Centre for 6 

months to help service an immediate demand brought about by changes in immigration 
policy.  An appropriate IELTS test score is an immigration requirement for international 
students pursuing further study or for people from non-native English speaking countries 
that are seeking Australian residency.   

 
International Market Development (offshore) 
Central TAFEs International Projects Unit oversees a range of activities in China (including Hong 
Kong), Kuwait and Taiwan.  The most significant activity and investment was in the China market.  
 
During 2006 the Unit: 

• Developed arrangements with counterpart institutions throughout China and mentored 
local teachers in the use of Australian Training Packages and the AQTF system.  The 
provision of Central TAFE expert teaching personnel has been applauded by our offshore 
students because it provides a western focus on education delivery and learning. 

 
• Successfully negotiated new contracts, made linkages with leading oil and gas industry 

groups, held high level discussions with ministerial leaders for vocational teacher training, 
provided guest speaker representation at international vocational reform conferences and 
contributed to a major photographic exhibition showcasing fifty of Central TAFEs talented 
students. 

 
Off-shore Initiatives 

• 1,900 students offshore (1,006 AQF and 900 non-AQF) 
• Anhui – Business English and Advanced Diploma Business Management 
• Chongqing – Business English, Information Technology 
• Jiangsu – Certificate IV Photo Imaging and Diploma of Mass Communication  
• Tianjin – Diploma of Oil and Gas Engineering and Diploma of Tourism Management 
• Shaoxing - Diploma of Business English, Diploma of Business Management 
• Zhejiang – Diploma of International Trade, Diploma of Financial Planning and Diploma 

Graphic Design  
• Hong Kong – Beauty Therapy training delivery throughout 10 high schools. 
• Taiwan – Aromatherapy  
• Kuwait – Oil and Gas Engineering, Diploma Civil and Structural Engineering, Diploma of 

Electro-technology, Certificate III in Drafting, Diploma Computer Aided Design 
• Central TAFE won an AusAID tender to deliver a specialised training program for 

Indonesian Government officers. 
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Student and College Communications 
In 2006 Student and College Communications undertook a number of new projects to market the 
College to prospective students and stakeholders. Foremost among these were the inaugural 
Open Day and a new external newsletter. In addition: 

• Accelerate ’06 open day in August attracted more than 1000 people to Perth campus to 
explore course offerings and College facilities.  The event showcased Central TAFE 
students who exhibited their work through music performances, art exhibitions, designer 
clothes sale, and fitness demonstrations.  

 
• The first edition of TAFE Central was published in November. The newsletter is designed to 

raise awareness of student, staff and College achievements, primarily amongst enterprises 
and employers, but also with government agencies, local government, schools and media.  
The aim is to assist in positioning the College as the leading vocational training and 
education provider in WA 

   
• The College revamped its approach to Graduation in 2006 moving from a whole of College 

ceremony to a series of school/portfolio based events. Six smaller graduation events were 
well received by students and sponsors from March to May. 

 
• A concerted effort was undertaken to improve and increase the coverage of the College in 

news media with outstanding results in suburban newspapers.  
 

Student Resources 
To encourage students in their studies and to make their time at Central TAFE an enjoyable 
learning experience, the College provides significant educational support services and facilities. 
Students, and the community at large, have access to information about Central TAFE via its 
website and, in particular, details of courses and career options through the online Product and 
Services Catalogue. 
 
In 2006, the Student Well-Being Centre provided the following services to students: 

• Psychological services conducted 10 workshops with a total of 350 staff in attendance 
• Study skills workshops for students in accounting  
• 218 students and 128 staff accessed psychologist services with a total of 407 contacts 
• 132 students with a disability were assisted 
• 3 high support need students received study assistance from mentors, coaches, and note 

takers 
• 3 closed circuit TVs procured for the libraries to benefit students with vision impairments 
• Job Placement services provided for students and graduates with 614 students registered 

during 2006 
• 647 employment opportunities were lodged with JobsCentral, an increase of 36.7% from 

2005 
• 864 employers registered with JobsCentral 
• 14,621 job notifications were sent to students, and of these 901 student referrals were 

made to industry 
• 2,700 active employers on the database 
• 66 student placements were made 
• 9 workshops in job preparation were conducted 
• 72 customised workshops in job preparation were conducted, a 75.6% increase from 2005 

 
Central TAFE is committed to involving and consulting with its student body. It receives feedback 
on the services it provides from the annual Student Satisfaction Survey, student focus groups and 
the Modular Completion Survey for each module of competency completed.  
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College Services 
 
The General Manager, College Services was accountable for the achievement of the College goals 
and priorities in the following key areas: 
 

• Financial Services 
• Infrastructure & Information Systems Management 
• Information Systems 
• Human Resources  
• Profile Planning and Research 
• Facilities Site Services 

 
Key activities: 
 
Financial Services is responsible for the implementation and administration of systems for financial 
control within the College, in accordance with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and 
in line with the Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF). The primary focus of Financial 
Services is to ensure that the accounting, budgeting, procurement and asset management 
functions of the College are managed in an ethical and professional manner in accordance with 
relevant legislation and guidelines established by the College Governing Council. 
 
In 2006, Central TAFE expended approximately $17,944,472 on Supplies and Services and, as 
provided for in the Vocational, Education and Training Act 1996 (VET Act), entered into a number 
of commercial arrangements in relation to the provision of education and training. The 
Procurement Team at Central TAFE endeavoured to ensure that best value for money outcomes 
were achieved and all procurement activity was undertaken in accordance with State Supply 
Commission (SSC) and other Government procurement policies and all commercial arrangements 
were undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the VET Act. 
 
Workforce Profile 
The Workforce Equity and Diversity Plan was reviewed in 2006, to focus on addressing the 
employment issues for the following groups: 

• Indigenous 
• Youth 
• Disabilities 

 
Central TAFE continued to pursue the public sector objective for employment of people from 
culturally diverse backgrounds, which was set at 5.5% in 2003. The College also: 

• Reviewed the Staff Recognition and Reward program to guide managers in ways to 
recognise staff effort. 

• Reviewed performance management policies and practices to streamline the process. 
• Introduced a traineeship program across the College including the appointment of a 

traineeship co-ordinator, with a focus on the equity groups. 
• Implemented an Indigenous strategy to address recruitment,  and cultural awareness 

issues for staff and managers 
• Provided support in the development of the Academic Leadership Program 
• Changed the working from home policy to make it simpler for staff to access home 

arrangements 
• Implemented ‘Keeping in Touch’ policy to remind managers to keep in touch with staff on 

long leave arrangements 
• Introduced the Government’s Criminal Record Checks and Working with Children 

Legislation 
• Ensured diversity targets were met 
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Industrial Relations 
• No matters were heard before the Industrial Commission during 2006 

 
Professional Development 
Central TAFE continued to provide a range of profession and career development opportunities for 
all College staff in 2006. 
 

• Whole of College professional development day in December was well attended and at 
least one whole of College PD is planned on an annual basis 

• Promoted lecturer training opportunities in Certificate IV Training and Assessment for new 
lecturers (Essential Skills Internship Program), Diploma in Auditing for principal lecturers, 
generic in-house skill development in Occupational Safety and Health, cultural awareness, 
administration and finance, TRIM and staff induction. 

 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) 
The Peak OSH Group made a significant commitment to safety in 2006 and supported a number of 
key strategies to ensure the College commitment to safety and maintenance of Central TAFE’s 
Worksafe Plan GOLD level of achievement.  
 
Central TAFE continued to focus its efforts on creating a positive safety culture where all staff 
shared responsibility for safety and improving College performance. This was achieved by further 
deploying the 3 themes / thrusts endorsed by the Peak OSH Group in 2005:  

• Management of high-risk activities 
• Communication to the campus / local level 
• Local ownership. 

 
 04/05 05/06 
Number of claims 11 15 
Number of LTI/D's 7 8 
Lost Time Injury / Disease Frequency 
Rate 

3.82 4.74 

Incidence rate 0.35 0.44 
Cost of Claims per $100 of wage roll $0.25 $0.25 
Premium Rate $0.71 $0.43 
Rehabilitation Success Rate % 50.00 0.00 

 
Profile Planning and Research 
The Profile Planning Unit ensures that the College meets its obligations under the Delivery and 
Performance Agreement it has with the Department of Education and Training.  This includes: 

• Coordination of the course profile and delivery targets 
• Monitoring of progress towards the achievement of targets 
• Liaison with TAFE Admissions with respect to full-time student intakes 

 
In 2006 the College exceeded its profile delivery targets.   

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 37 of 86



CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 
 

 

GOVERNMENT GOALS 
 
Goal 1: People and Communities 
 
To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout Western Australia, Central 
TAFE  
 

• Delivers quality Vocational Education and Training 
• Supports the learning needs of all Western Australians and creates pathways between 

secondary, vocational and tertiary education 
• Develops strategies to enhance the inclusion of all Western Australian community groups in 

education and training 
 
Obligatory Reporting 
 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 
 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services 
of, and any events organised by, Central TAFE. 

o Central TAFE continued to review, modify and adapt existing services, equipment and 
facilities to appropriately respond to and improve access for people with disabilities. 

 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access buildings 
and other facilities of Central TAFE 

o Central TAFE continued to review the priorities regarding access and egress for people 
with disabilities, identified through consultation and access audits, to incorporate them, as 
appropriate, into submissions for on-going capital works improvement programs. 

 
o The College maintained on-going communication with students about the physical access 

to buildings and facilities and continuously reviewed and assessed teaching and learning 
strategies to cater for individual learning needs and styles. 

 
People with disabilities receive information from Central TAFE in a format that will enable 
them to access the information as readily as other people 

o The College provided information to customers in clear, concise language, which was made 
available in alternative formats upon request. 

 
o Central TAFE continued to educate and inform staff, and raise public awareness as to the 

type and availability of alternative formats, flexible delivery modes and alternative 
assessment arrangements for students with disabilities.  Alternative formats included, but 
are not limited to, large print, audio cassette, digital records, Braille and IBM compatible 
disks/CD. 

 
People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of 
Central TAFE as other people receive from the staff of Central 

o Central TAFE acknowledges that staff awareness education and training are continuous 
activities.  Plans are underway for the development of a disability awareness training 
package that will be rolled out for all new and contracted staff within the College during 
2007. 
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People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints at 
Central TAFE 

o Central TAFE has a Customer Complaint process in place. Customers are invited to make 
their comments (positive or negative) in writing or by completing a Customer Complaint 
Form.  These may be submitted directly to staff or mailed, postage paid.  There is a 
dedicated Complaints Officer who receives written or verbal complaints. All complaints are 
treated confidentially and equitably.  

 
People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any 
public consultation by a public authority 

o Central TAFE recognises the valuable contribution of people with disabilities, their carers, 
families, and advocates, make to the development of College policies and practices. 

 
o The College continued to provide information in clear consider language to enable 

participation by all in decision-making, public consultations and grievances. 
 
Cultural Diversity and Language Services Outcomes 
 
Interpreting services to access services 

o Central TAFE provided interpreting services to students, seeking to access services upon 
request. 

 
Translating services to access information about services 

o Central TAFE provided translating services to students seeking access to information about 
services provided by the College upon request. 

 
Range of interpreting and translating services, including migrant languages, Aboriginal 
languages and AUSLAN 

o Central TAFE provided a range of interpreting and translating services, to students upon 
request 

 
Youth Outcomes 
 
With 49% of Central TAFEs student population aged 15 to 24 years (more than 12,500 in number), 
almost half the College effort is directed towards young people. In addition to being able to access 
all of the courses and programs on offer, young people were specifically targeted in areas 
including: 
 

• VET in Schools programs offered in range of study areas 
• Apprenticeships and traineeships offered across study areas 
• Investment in infrastructure and technology to support more interactive learning favoured 

by young people 
• Creation of student friendly recreation and study areas on campus 
• College involved in the development of the District Youth Education Strategy 
• Youth at education risk initiatives with pathways to further training opportunities  
• Significant student support and resources through the Student Well-Being Centre, including 

job preparation, JobsCentral and counselling 
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Goal 2: The Economy 
 
To develop a strong economy that delivers more jobs, more opportunities and greater wealth to 
Western Australians by creating the conditions required for investment and growth, Central TAFE  
 

• Supports the development of the Western Australian economy through the development of 
an appropriately skilled workforce 

• Trains for a workforce which reflects the State’s diverse population 
• Develops the ability of the College to respond to the demand for VET through innovation 

and excellence 
 
Obligatory reporting 
As outlined in the Key Performance Indicators (KPI) (to follow), Central TAFE met its obligations 
under the Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) it has with the Department of Education 
and Training.  The College was funded under the DPA to deliver 6,257,121 Student Curriculum 
Hours (SCH) distributed amongst the State defined industry groups.  The delivery took into 
consideration the needs of the local community, individuals and the training plans of industry.  The 
diversity of delivery indicates the extent to which the College has met its strategic training needs of 
the State as defined in the State Training Profile as well as additional delivery provided under a 
fee-for-service arrangement. 

In 2006 the College exceeded its profile delivery targets by .3%.   
 
Central TAFE addressed skill shortages and supported the development of a skilled workforce 
across industry areas, specifically in para-professional training for mining, manufacturing and 
resource sectors, and the health and community services industries.   
 
The College was involved in a number of joint ventures in key industry areas and expanded both 
offshore and onshore delivery, building local and international skills and strengthening the 
economic foundation for the College.  
 
The growth areas for the College were increased numbers in: 

o Apprenticeships and traineeships 
o Enrolled Indigenous students 
o Employment Based Training (EBT) opportunities 
o Skills Recognition processes 
o VET in Schools 
o Adult Migrant English Program (AMEP) for new arrivals.  

 
The required reporting of information in relation to the State budget process, financial and/or 
economic aspects of the Colleges’ performance is addressed in Financial Section of the Annual 
Report. 
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Goal 3: The Environment 
 
To ensure that Western Australia has an environment in which resources are managed, developed 
and used sustainably, biological diversity is preserved and habitats protected, Central TAFE  
 

• Strives for environmentally friendly work practices 
• Supports Indigenous communities in developing skills in land management and 

sustainability 
• Supports the development of the sustainable energy industry 

 
Obligatory reporting 
 
Waste Paper Recycling 
Central TAFE collects paper and cardboard from all its campuses which is recycled through the 
College’s waste removal contract with SITA Environmental. Paper and cardboard recycling for 
2006 totalled 55,495 kilograms. This is a significant reduction compared to the 2005 figure of 
78,624 kilograms. The reduction was assisted by the introduction of multifunctional printing devices 
across the College in 2006 which have default settings for duplex printing and photocopying. 
 
Energy Smart Government Policy 
Under the Energy Smart Government Policy Agencies are expected to achieve a 12% reduction in 
energy consumption by 2006/2007. The target for 2005/2006 was 10%. 
 
Central TAFE achieved a reduction of 14.9% for the 2005/2006 period. Figures for the 1 July 2005 
to 30 June 2006 compared to the baseline are as follows: 
 

End Use Category: Tertiary Educational 
Facilities 

Baseline 
(2001/2002) 

2005/2006 

Energy Consumption (GJ) 46,086 39,203  
 Energy Cost ($) 1,386,533 1,178,920

Greenhouse Gas Emissions ( tonnes of CO2) 9,991 7,941  
 MJ/Area (m²)/annum 423 359

 MJ/Effective Full Time Students/annum 2,783 2,009
 
The College's Environmental Conservation Projects Committee has been in existence for eight 
years and continues to progress energy initiatives and raise awareness College wide. Energy 
saving initiatives implemented in 2005/06 included: 

• Continued replacement of existing triple tube fluorescent light fittings with lower energy 
demand single tube maxi light fittings with triphosophorous tubes 

• Continued data collection on energy use for site-based monitoring by managers 
• Signed a three year agreement with Synergy for continued participation in the Synergy 

Peak Demand Saver Agreement 
• Installed low-energy use multi-functional devices which will lead to a reduction in printers 

and other devices, such as scanners and faxes, used within the College 
• Conducted internal audits of campus energy use to ensure building management systems 

are accurate and working efficiently 
• Upgraded the air-conditioning plant at the Perth Campus, which included: 

o Installation of Variable Air Volume Controls in place of outdated pneumatic controls. 
o A gas boiler at the 19 Aberdeen Street building instead of electrical 
o New cooling tower in the 25 Aberdeen Street building 
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Goal 4: The Regions 
 
To ensure that regional Western Australia is strong and vibrant, Central TAFE  
 

• Supports skill advancement in rural and regional WA 
 
Central TAFE is the largest metropolitan College in WA.  Although its offerings are largely geared 
towards people living in or near the metropolitan area, individual portfolio study areas have 
established partnering arrangements with rural and regional industries and individuals. Students 
who live in rural and remote regions of WA also have opportunities to study off-campus. 
 
In 2006, Central TAFE in an arrangement, which included the Department of Education, Science 
and Training (DEST), Argyle Diamonds, East Kimberley TAFE and 2 Indigenous communities from 
the Kimberley, undertook a significant regional based project. 
 
Towards a Sustainable Community was a project funded under the Australian Government’s 
Industry Training Strategies Program, administered by the Department of Education, Science and 
Training (DEST) in 2006.   The aim of the project was to engage Indigenous communities and 
regional stakeholders in projects that would support the longer term sustainability of the 
communities as well as complement broader community and corporate stakeholder goals. 
 
Training outcomes were aligned to project activities, while literacy and numeracy skills 
development, along with a focus on work skills, was integrated.  All training was flexible, practical 
and conducted on site to ensure a culturally appropriate and secure environment for participants. 
 
The project comprised the building of sustainable toilet and shower blocks for two Indigenous 
communities in the Kimberley region.  Participants completed units from the Certificate I in Building 
and Construction and later were offered further opportunities for study and work in the local area. 
The project received recognition from DEST for its innovation in solar-powered energy and 
engagement with communities.  
 
 
Obligatory Reporting 
 
Regional Development Policy 
 
Agencies are required to report to the Department of Local Government and Regional 
Development, through the regional development policy implementation process. Matters relating to 
regional development have been addressed throughout this Annual Report. 
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Goal 5: Governance 
 
To govern for all Western Australians in an open, effective and efficient manner that also ensures a 
sustainable future, Central TAFE  
 

• Is accountable for its processes 
• Supports inclusive decision making 
• Encourages greater community accessibility to College services 

 
Central TAFE is a body corporate with the College Governing Council established as the 
accountable authority.  The Finance and Risk Management Committee (FARM), a sub-committee 
of Governing Council has oversight of the Colleges’ financial and risk management processes. The 
College has in place policies and procedures to support greater accountability, inclusive decision-
making and to encourage accessibility to College services, and are reviewed and updated 
annually. 
 
Obligatory Reporting 
 
Evaluations 
The College Research and Analysis Unit undertook research in the following areas: 

• Business Traineeship Program Evaluation: Evaluated effectiveness of undertaking the 
traineeship program by seeking feedback from industry representatives, employers and 
trainees. 

• Architectural, Technology and Design Studies Orientation Project: 2006 saw significant 
growth in the number of student enrolments within the Architectural, Technology and 
Design study area.  The purpose of the project was to determine the influences and 
contributing factors. 

• Building Design and Technology Industry Feedback Project: Evaluated the effectiveness of 
the delivery of the training provided with the Building Design and Technology program area.  
The research has provided valuable information about industry training requirements and 
identified priority areas for further development. 

• International Centre Project: Outcomes from the project have delivered significant results 
aimed at improving the quality of the support and academic guidance each international 
student receives whilst studying. 

• Student Repeat Business Project: The project identified motivational factors for students 
returning to study at Central TAFE. 

 
Information Statement (Freedom of Information) 
Central TAFE developed a new draft Information Statement (December 2006) to replace the 
existing document.   
 
The Freedom of Information Act 1992 was proclaimed in Western Australia on 1 November 1993 to 
provide the public general right of access to documents held by Government agencies and the 
right to apply for an amendment to personal information that is out of date, misleading or 
inaccurate. 
  
Central TAFE is committed to openness and accountability and to provide information without the 
need for formal applications under the Act. Our policy is to release documents unless valid 
exemptions exist, and where possible, to make available documents that are technically exempt if 
the College believes that it is in the public interest, or will service the purposes of natural justice, to 
do so. 
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Central TAFE has appointed a Freedom of Information Coordinator to ensure its compliance with 
the provisions of the Act and facilitate the handling of requests made under this statute. 
 
Application for access to agency documents, or amendment of personal information, may be 
lodged at any Central TAFE campus. 
 
Before making an FOI application, enquirers need to find out whether the documents they are 
seeking can be obtained free or at nominal cost. 
 
During 2006, one application for access to information, in accordance with the Freedom of 
Information Act 1992, was processed by Central TAFE. Further statistical information about agency 
compliance of the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act are published in the Freedom of 
Information Annual Report, available from the Office of the Information Commissioner’s website at 
www.foi.wa.gov.au
 
Central TAFE produces a number of documents for public usage. Applications are not required to 
be made under the Freedom of Information Act for access to documents listed under the 
publication section of this report. Many of these documents are available of the College’s website, 
at www.central.wa.edu.au
 
 
Recordkeeping Plan 

• In accordance with the sector-wide Recordkeeping Plan, Central TAFE manages its 
records using an electronic document records management system (TRIM Context) and 
requires its employees to take individual responsibility for recordkeeping.   

 
• In May an audit of records management for Central TAFE was conducted by the Internal 

Assurance Directorate of the Department of Education and Training.  Some moderate and 
minor instances of non-compliance were noted in 3 of the 6 recordkeeping principles.   

 
• The College’s records management policy and procedures were also reviewed throughout 

the year and recordkeeping performance indicators will be introduced to monitor the 
College’s recordkeeping practices.   

 
 
Advertising 
In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the following is a statement for all 
expenditure incurred by Central TAFE during 2006 in relation to advertising, market research, 
polling, direct mail and media advertising organisations:   
 

1. The total expenditure for 2006 was $541,624 
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas: 
 

 
Advertising agencies $179,535 Core Marketing $179,535  
Market research Nil Nil Nil
Polling organisations Nil Nil Nil
Direct mail organisations Nil Nil Nil
Media advertising  $362,089 Media Decisions  $304,278
  Marketforce $57,811  

 

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 44 of 86

http://www.foi.wa.gov.au/
http://www.central.wa.edu.au/


CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 
 

Publications 
Central TAFE produced a range of publications to satisfy compliance requirements and to meet the 
needs of students, potential students, parents and guardians.   

Copies of publications are available online at www.central.wa.edu.au or by contacting the 
Customer Contact Centre on 1300 300 822.   

Among the publications available in 2006 were: 
• AQTF Response to Audit (RTO – Action Sheet) 
• Central TAFE Annual Report 2005 
• Central TAFE External Newsletter 
• College Essentials Handbook & Diary- including by-laws and Student Code of Conduct 
• College brochures - general information  
• College Plan 2006 - 2010 
• Course information brochures 
• Course information including Skills Recognition & Student Wellbeing Centre 
• Course lists and guides for semester one and two course offerings 
• Direct marketing materials 
• Flexible eLearning support materials 
• Learning guides and texts - published by WestOne  
• Library services to staff 
• Marketing support for all portfolios within Central TAFE 
• Referencing Guide: using the Harvard Referencing System 
• Self Paced Guide to creating an email account 
• Self Paced Guide to research 
• Self Paced Guide to the World Wide Web (WWW) 
• Self Paced Orientation to the Learning Resource Centre 
• Self Paced Orientation to the library 
• Skills Recognition Information Booklet 
• Strategic Plan 
• Student intranet site 
• Various promotional brochures, posters, signage/banners and advertisements 
• Website - comprehensive list of College, course and module information 
• Your guide to the library 
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Sustainability 
The majority of actions under the Central TAFE Sustainability Action Plan are either completed or 
embedded into everyday business. 
 
Activities for 2006 included: 

• Exceeding the Energy Smart Government target for 2005/2006 
• Improved effort in waste paper and cardboard recycling 
• Development of a Green Transport Survey for the purpose of developing a Green Transport 

Plan in 2007 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes 
Central TAFE has implemented a number of proactive initiatives to ensure that the principles of 
equal opportunity are instilled in the College’s operating processes and culture.   

 
These initiatives include the provision for regular Equal Opportunity awareness training, College 
Executive’s endorsement of a safe and healthy workplace free from harassment, the development 
of support mechanisms for managers and staff when issues arise (e.g. mediation, awareness 
raising, training), and the maintenance of an active Grievance Officer Network.  These initiatives 
are documented in policies, procedures, guidelines, training resources and the Staff Code of 
Conduct. 
 
The College believes that it will meet the Sector’s objectives for Equity and Diversity, and may in 
some cases exceed these objectives, by 2009.  During 2006 Central focused on the employment 
of: 

• Indigenous Australians 
• Youth 
• People with disabilities 

 
Central TAFE has: 

• developed strategic objectives in relation to recruitment of staff and trainees from the 
categories youth, disabilities and Indigenous Australians 

• established partnerships and relationships with recruitment agencies (including the 
Public Sector Management Division’s recruitment unit) 

• researched and implemented a funded traineeship system 
• developed training and awareness programs for staff and managers  
• developed strategies for these staff to have access to promotional positions 
• developed mentoring programs 
• developed strategies for a workplace culture and inclusive work practices to retain and 

develop all staff, including equity and diversity groups 
 

When Central TAFE Equity Index for 2005 was compared with 59 other public agencies it was 
ranked 12th at 81.7%.  This is a reflection of the effort put into College recruitment strategies 
and workforce planning to appoint applicants from diversity groups. 

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 46 of 86



CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 
 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards (PSS) and Ethical Codes 
 

Compliance with Human Resource Management Standards 
 
Central TAFE monitored and assessed the extent of its compliance with the Public Sector 
Standards in Human Resource Management through: 

• claims lodged and consequent feedback on processes 
• regularly reviewed and monitored processes in line with the PSS 
• inducted new staff on the Standards 
• trained staff who participated in recruitment panels about the Standards 
• developed and implemented policies, guidelines and processes that supported the 

Standards 
• maintained forms and the HR website (available to all staff) with up-to date information and 

links to the PSS website 
• included references to the PSS and their website on correspondence  
• maintained a highly trained Grievance Officer Network across all sites, supported by Senior 

HR Consultants who case managed all issues raised. 
 

There were three formal grievances managed internally during 2006 relating to merit selection 
and conflict with management.  One was initiated in 2005 and completed in 2006.  This 
compared favourably with ten formal grievances during 2004, and seven formal grievances 
during 2005. 

 
Breach claims against the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management lodged 
under the Public Sector Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards) Procedures 2005 at 
Central TAFE during 2006 were: 
 

Standard Outcome Action(s) 
Secondment Dismissed by Commissioner NA 
Recruitment, Appointment & Selection Dismissed by Commissioner NA 

 
 
Compliance with Codes of Ethics and Codes of Conduct (Ethical Codes) 

 
At the end of 2005 Central TAFE reviewed its Staff Code of Conduct which was finalised and 
disseminated during 2006.  Incorporated into the Code was the attachment of The Western 
Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics (2002). 
 
All Central staff were mailed a copy of the reviewed Staff Code of Conduct and the Western 
Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics (2002), and emailed an electronic copy of the Staff Code.  
The Staff Code of Conduct and the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics (2002) are 
available to staff on the College intranet, and included in the induction process for all new staff. 
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Corruption Prevention 
Central TAFE has considered the risks of corruption and misconduct as components of the 
organisation risk management process and has a number of controls in place to reduce risks.  
 
The Finance Audit and Risk Management (FARM) sub-committee of Central TAFEs Governing 
Council, has oversight of the risk management process and acknowledges the requirement for 
College Executive to ensure compliance and minimise risk.  
 
Other controls include: 
• Staff Code of Conduct and College Charter reviewed in September 2006. The Code 

includes information about notification procedures for dealing with misconduct and 
corruption with an emphasis on ensuring confidentiality.  Information was circulated to staff 
and is available on the College website.  

• Ongoing monitoring, reviewing and updating policies and procedures, with an emphasis on 
financial and procurement controls. 

• Performance management of all staff. 
• Criminal Screening introduced during 2005. 
• As a result of an inquiry conducted by the Corruption and Crime Commission (CCC) in 

2006, the College is working with the CCC to develop an education program for whole of 
College staff to roll-out during 2007. 

• A Corruption Policy and Corruption Control Plan has been drafted, as part of the 
development of a Corruption Prevention Strategy. 

 
Public Interest Disclosures 
Central TAFE has an appointed public interest disclosure (PID) officer with responsibility for 
receiving and managing disclosures that may occur under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003. 
Information about disclosure processes was promoted by the Managing Director to staff in 2006. 
No disclosures were received by the College in 2006. 
 
Declaration of Interests 
In accordance with the requirements of Treasury on disclosure of interests of senior officers: 

• No senior officer has had any shareholding in the College, and 
• To the best of our knowledge, no senior officer has any interest in contracts made or 

proposed with the College 
 
Public Liability Insurance 
Central TAFE has paid $22,070.40 for Directors and Officers Liability Insurance to indemnify any 
‘director’ (as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996) against 
a liability incurred under sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 
1996.  
 
Pricing Policy 
Under section 16 of the Vocational Education and Training Regulation 1996, the College may 
determine fees and charges for services, other than for services prescribed by the Minister for 
Education and Training under these Regulations.  The College has documented fees and charges 
payable, including those gazetted by the Minister, in its annual Fees and Charges Policy. 
 
Included in the 2006 Fees and Charges Policy is the application of statutory fees and charges in 
Schedule 1 of the Policy, of College fees and charges in Schedule 2 of the Policy and of Resource 
Fees in Schedule 3.  In 2006, Central TAFEs fees and charges were increased by 2.5% which was 
applied in accordance with the Policy Guidelines for Publicly Funded Registered Training 
Organisations. 
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Legislative Environment 
Central TAFE complies with the following relevant legislation: 
 
Archive Act 1983, Commonwealth 
Censorship Act 1996 
Commercial Tenancy (Retail Shops) 1989 
Copyright Act 1968, Commonwealth 
Disability Services Act 1993 
Education Service Providers (Full Fee Overseas Students) Registration Act 1991 
Education Services for Overseas Students (Registration of Providers and Financial Registration) 
Act 1991 Commonwealth 
Electoral Act 1907 
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003 
Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000, Commonwealth 
Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 
Freedom of Information Act 1992 
Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 
Industrial Relations Act 1979 
Industrial Relations Act 1990, Commonwealth 
Industrial Training Act 1975 
Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 – 1983 
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 
Privacy Act 1988, Commonwealth 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 
Public Sector Management Act 1994 
Spam Act 2003, Commonwealth 
State Records Act 2000 
State Supply Commission Act 1991 
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 
Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 1981 
Workplace Relations Act 1996, Commonwealth 
Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 
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AUDITOR GENERAL 

  
 
 
 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
CENTRAL TAFE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial position 
of Central TAFE at 31 December 2006 and its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year ended on that date. They are in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and 
other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s 
Instructions;  

(ii) the controls exercised by the College provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, 
expenditure and investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the 
incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

(iii) the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the College are relevant and 
appropriate to help users assess the College’s performance and fairly represent the indicated 
performance for the year ended 31 December 2006. 

 
Scope 
During the year the Governing Council was responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining 
adequate systems of internal control, for preparing the financial statements and performance indicators, 
and complying with the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and other relevant written law. The 
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 was repealed and replaced by the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Auditor General Act 2006 from 1 February 2007. This did not impact on the agency’s 
operations or the audit work conducted during the year ended 31 December 2006. 
 
The financial statements consist of the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in 
Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
The performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, I have independently audited the accounts, financial 
statements and performance indicators to express an opinion on the financial statements, controls and 
performance indicators. This was done by testing selected samples of the evidence. Further information 
on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer 
 "http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf". 
 
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and 
performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit does not 
examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should identify errors or 
omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the financial statements and 
performance indicators. 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
ACTING AUDITOR GENERAL 
14 March 2007 
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Certification of Performance Indicators 
 
 
 
We hereby certify that the Performance Indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and 
appropriate for assisting users to assess Central TAFEs performance, and fairly represent the 
performance of the College for the financial year ended 31 December 2006. 
 
 
 

 
 
Dr Debra Rosser 
Chair 
Governing Council 
Central TAFE 
27 February 2007 
 
 
 

 
 
Mr Neil Fernandes 
Acting Managing Director 
Central TAFE 
27 February 2007  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 51 of 86



CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Desired Outcomes 
 

The provision of vocational education and 
training services to meet community and 
industry training needs. 
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Achievement of College Profile 
This performance indicator reports the effectiveness of the College in meeting Delivery and Performance 
Agreement targets and enabling customer needs to be achieved.  The College was funded under the 
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) to deliver 6,257,121 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) 
distributed amongst the State defined industry groups.  This purchased delivery took into consideration the 
needs of the local community, individuals and the training plans of industry.  The diversity of delivery 
indicates the extent to which the College has met its strategic training needs of the State as defined in the 
State Training Profile as well as additional delivery provided under a fee-for-service arrangement. 

Measure A: Profile Analysis for Central TAFE (Effectiveness Indicator) 
This indicator details the total number of Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) delivered (both Delivery and 
Performance Agreement Funded and fee-for-service). 

 2005 2006 

Department of Education and Training Industry Group 
Planned 

Profile (SCH) 
Actual Profile 

(SCH) 
Planned 

Profile (SCH) 
Actual Profile 

(SCH) 
01A Recreation Sports and Entertainment 183,923 187,238 228,491 246,940 
01B Visual and Performing Arts 506,787 504,494 559,000 578,267 
01C Design 392,720 380,591 428,640 407,600 
02A Automotive 0 0 0 167 
03A Building and Construction 142,000 156,791 146,027 151,462 
03B Surveying and Building 400,000 396,541 432,100 435,294 
04A Community Service Workers 313,932 313,260 320,616 349,765 
04B Education and Childcare 293,827 263,581 290,790 329,586 
04C Health 397,133 405,741 400,170 390,528 
04D Library Workers 95,500 94,925 98,404 99,950 
05A Finance Insurance Property Service Workers 106,440 118,890 132,050 163,029 
07A Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings 70,000 69,400 24,720 25,130 
08B Printing and Publishing 182,399 184,685 122,958 121,041 
09A Engineering and Drafting 229,252 249,306 235,262 240,090 
09B Metal and Mining 158,999 160,790 174,996 185,407 
10D Horticulture 5,000 3,132 5,040 8,581 
11A Process Manufacturing 21,000 16,184 28,420 15,712 
12A Personal Service 68,442 68,945 73,872 78,820 
12B Retail 3,576 2,510 8,096 3,432 
13C Tourism  184,461 188,380 187,128 201,355 
13D Travel Agents 92,000 94,457 94,130 100,248 
15A Electrical and Electronic Engineering 169,000 164,828 177,920 182,080 
15B Electrical Trades 15,920 8,652 4,840 4,392 
16A Accounting and Other Business Services 412,673 419,886 393,632 386,454 
16B Management 334,191 313,231 236,200 229,512 
16C Office and Clerical 125,287 122,829 172,031 206,299 
17A Computing 398,999 375,933 331,605 314,201 
18A Science and Technical Workers 236,207 242,287 235,880 222,313 
19B Adult Literacy/ESL 336,822 357,425 374,822 374,835 
19C Languages 256,311 259,241 248,311 244,190 
19D Miscellaneous 6,800 15,155 0 0 
19E Targeted Access and Participation Courses 83,875 101,998 90,970 98,500 
 Total Profile Delivery 6,224,001 6,241,306 6,257,121 6,395,180 
 Non Profile Delivery 1,700,000 1,415,848 1,785,000 1,940,002 
 College Total Delivery 7,924,001 7,657,154 8,042,121 8,335,182 
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Measure B: Profile Achievement (Effectiveness Indicator) 
This indicator shows the percentage of Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) achieved for profile funded activities 
as contracted with Department of Education and Training through the Delivery and Performance Agreement. 
 
      Profile Achievement  =        Actual Delivery and Performance Agreement SCH Achieved
                      Target SCH contained within Delivery and Performance Agreement 
 

2002 Actual 2003 Actual 2004 Actual 2005 Actual 2006 Actual 2006 Target 
98.8% 100.5% 99.5% 100.3% 102.2% 100.0% 

98.8%

100.5%

99.5%

100.3%

102.2%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 110%

2002 Actual

2003 Actual

2004 Actual

2005 Actual

2006 Actual

 
Notes (for Measure A & B): 
a) Source: Central TAFE Delivery and Performance Agreement, through which the College is resourced to 

deliver courses under Government, purchased funding guidelines. 
b) Definition: The table indicates the quota and actual achievement of SCH in the profiled Department of 

Education and Training Industry Group categories. The classification of these Industry Groups is based 
on the occupation or outcome the course is intended to serve. 

c) Derivation: Profile data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective years.  Planned data is 
obtained from the Delivery and Performance Agreement. The actual SCH is the total SCH from the 
College Management Information System (CMIS).  Non-Profile Delivery SCH is the actual SCH count of 
enrolments not funded under the Delivery and Performance Agreement in CMIS. 

d) Comments: The College has over delivered on its College Total Delivery target in both College Profile 
Target (Delivery and Performance Agreement) and Non-profile Delivery Target. 
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Student Satisfaction Rating (Effectiveness Indicator) 
The Student Satisfaction Rating measures a range of task and functional criteria in academic delivery, 
support services and facilities provided. The results provide an overall expression of how satisfied students 
are with various services provided by the College. 
 

 
 
 
 

Overall Student Satisfaction Rating 
2002 Actual 2003 Actual 2004 Actual 2005 Actual 2006 Actual 2006 Target 

80.8% 83.9% 82.7% 82.6% 85.8% 85% 

80.8%

83.9% 

82.7% 

82.6% 

85.8% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

2002 Actual 

2003 Actual 

2004 Actual 

2005 Actual 

2006 Actual 

 
Notes: 
a) Source: Department of Education and Training, Student Satisfaction Survey.  
b) Definition: The calculation for overall satisfaction is a weighted response to a single question asking the 

student to rate their overall satisfaction with their course. The survey approach is a mass market mail out 
to a random sample of students who had undertaken a course either in the first or second semester of 
the corresponding reference period. The option to participate in the survey on-line and the use of 
computer assisted telephone interviewing was also provided. 

c) Derivation: The key focus of the survey instrument being to obtain an understanding of students training 
requirements and to measure the quality of the delivery of training. A total of 6,574 survey forms were 
mailed to students; with 2,014 useable forms representing a response rate of 31%. The questionnaire is 
designed to rate issues relating to learning, assessment and perceptions of the College experience, on a 
seven point scale, with overall satisfaction being on a five point scale. The standard error for the survey 
is 1.6% at the 95% confidence level, based on the Colleges’ useable population of 15,093. 

d) Comments: The Overall Satisfaction Score for 2006 of 85.8% an increase of 3.2% from the previous 
years' results. 
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Graduate Achievement (Effectiveness Indicator) 
The graduate achievement is an indicator that measures the extent to which Central TAFE Graduates have 
fully or partly achieved their main reason for undertaking the course. 
 
Graduate Achievement 

 2002 
Actual 

2003 
Actual 

2004 
Actual 

2005 
Actual 

2006 
Actual 

2006 
Target 

Central TAFE 73.7% 70.7% 77.0% 83.0% 86.3% 85.0% 
Western Australia 77.4% 76.9% 78.0% 84.0% 87.7% n.a. 
Australia 78.2% 77.7% 81.0% 85.0% 85.6% n.a. 

77.4%

73.7%

76.9%

70.7%

78.0%

77.0%

84.0%

83.0%

87.7%

86.3%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2002 Actual

2003 Actual

2004 Actual

2005 Actual

2006 Actual

Western Australia Central TAFE
 

Notes: 
a) Source: Student Outcome Survey, National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER). 

Please Note, for the 2004 Student Outcomes Survey, the survey sample was not at the College level, 
however, NCVER supplied top level results based for reporting purposes. 

b) Definition: The 2006 survey was targeted at those Central TAFE students who graduated in 2005 and 
who had successfully completed a qualification, including those who were awarded a qualification as 
recognition of prior learning and had provided an Australian address as their usual place of residence. 
There were 1,054 students who responded to the survey representing 15.3% of the graduate population 
of 6,891. The standard error for the survey is +/- 1.9% at the 95% confidence level. 

c) Derivation: The measure was derived from the proportion of graduates who indicated that they had fully 
or partly achieved their main reason for doing the course, expressed as a percentage of the 
representative population. 

d) Comments: Graduate achievement considerably increased by 3.3% from 83% in 2005 to 86.3% in 2006 
following the steady increase of graduate achievement at the State and National level. 
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Graduate Destination (Effectiveness Indicator) 
The proportion of graduates in employment, as at 26 May 2006, is a performance measure that shows the 
extent to which Central TAFE is providing relevant quality training that improves student employability. 
 
Employment Outcomes 

 Employed Unemployed Not in the Labour 
Force 

 2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006 2004 2005 2006 
Central TAFE 74.0% 77.0% 76.4% 10.0% 9.0% 7.8% 16.0% 13.0% 15.7%
Western Australia 76.0% 78.0% 79.9% 8.0% 9.0% 7.4% 15.0% 13.0% 12.2%

Australia 75.0% 79.0% 79.0% 11.0% 10.0% 10.0% 13.0% 11.0% 10.5%
 

76.0%

74.0%
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77.0%

79.9%

76.4%
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8.0%

10.0%

9.0%

9.0%

7.4%

7.8%
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Notes: 
a) Source: Student Outcome 

Survey, National Centre for 
Vocational Education Research 
(NCVER). Please Note, for the 
2004 Student Outcomes Survey, 
the survey sample was not at the 
College level, however, NCVER 
supplied top level results based 
for reporting purposes.  

b) Definition: The 2006 survey 
was targeted at those Central 
TAFE students who graduated in 
2005 and who had successfully 
completed a qualification, 
including those who were 
awarded a qualification as 
recognition of prior learning and 
had provided an Australian 
address as their usual place of 
residence. There were 1,054 
students who responded to the 
survey representing 15.3% of the 
graduate population of 6,891. 
The standard error for the survey 
is +/- 1.9% at the 95% 
confidence level. Please Note: 
No targets for this indicator have 
been set as graduate destination 
is beyond the influence and 
control of the College. 
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15.0%

16.0%

13.0%

13.0%

12.2%

15.7%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%
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Not in the Labour Force

W e ste rn Austra lia Ce ntra l T AFE
 

c) Derivation: Graduate labour 
force status was derived 
according to the standard 
Australian Bureau of Statistics 
definitions of employed, 
unemployed and not in the 
labour force. The measure of 
graduates in each category 
according to the responses to 
questions concerning their work 
at 26 May 2006, expressed as a 
percentage of the representative 
population. 

d) Comments: The proportion of 
Central TAFE graduates who 
were employed has decreased 
by 0.6% from 2005 to 2006. 
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Total Delivery Cost Per SCH (Efficiency Indicator) 
This indicator demonstrates the efficiency with which Central TAFE manages its resources to enable the 
provision of vocational education and training programs. 
 

2006 Actual Cost =  Total Cost of Services       
                                                               Total SCH 
 

2002 Actual 2003 Actual 2004 Actual 2005 Actual 2006 Actual 2006 Target 
$11.51 $11.58 $11.42 $12.35 $11.72 $12.32 

$11.51

$11.58

$11.42

$12.35

$11.72

$0 $1 $2 $3 $4 $5 $6 $7 $8 $9 $10 $11 $12 $13

2002 Ac tua l

2003  Ac tua l

2004  Ac tua l

2005  Ac tua l

2006  Ac tua l

 
Notes: 
a) Source:  Financial Statements and the College Management Information System. 
b) Definition: The total delivery cost per SCH is calculated by dividing the total cost of services measured on 

an accrual basis, by the total SCH delivered.  
c) Derivation: The total SCH is the total number of module enrolments multiplied by the hourly duration of 

these modules as registered in the College Management Information System in accordance with the 
Australian Vocational Education and Training Management Information Statistical Standard. Delivery from all 
funding sources is included. The total cost of services figure is obtained from the Annual Financial 
Statements 

d) Comment: The College continues to manage its resources efficiently to achieve its funded vocational 
education and training programs. 
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Certification of Financial Statements 
 
 
The accompanying financial statements from Central TAFE have been prepared in compliance 
with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, from proper accounts and 
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the twelve months ending 31 December 2006 
and the financial position at that date. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars 
included in the Financial Statements misleading or inaccurate. 
 
 
 

 
 
Dr Debra Rosser 
Chair 
Governing Council 
Central TAFE 
27 February 2007 
 
 
 

 
 
Mr Neil Fernandes 
Acting Managing Director 
Central TAFE 
27 February 2007  
 
 
 

 
 
Ms Mandy Taylor 
Chief Financial Officer 
Central TAFE  
27 February 2007 
 
 

   
 CENTRAL TAFE ANNUAL REPORT 2006 Find your Future Faster 

 
 Page 60 of 86



INCOME STATEMENT 2006 2005
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

Notes $ $
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 57,219,547                       56,874,132                       
Supplies and services 7 17,945,924                       16,424,032                       
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 4,509,821                         4,490,534                         
Finance costs 9 -                                   5,399                                
Grants and subsidies 10 3,336                                -                                   
Capital user charge 11 11,578,953                       11,046,055                       
Cost of sales 16 708,359                            793,812                            
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 20 12,235                              67,685                              
Other expenses 12 5,683,598                         4,894,354                         
Total cost of services 97,661,773                       94,596,003                       

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 13 7,388,908                         6,421,655                         
Student fees and charges 14 9,115,091                         8,464,641                         
Ancillary trading 15 1,649,798                         1,937,950                         
Sales 16 981,103                            1,054,304                         
Commonwealth grants and contributions 17 3,084,111                         2,893,350                         
Interest revenue 18 814,944                            621,761                            
Other revenue 19 1,691,126                         1,577,631                         
Total revenue 24,725,081                       22,971,292                       

Total income other than income from State Government 24,725,081                       22,971,292                       

NET COST OF SERVICES  (72,936,692)                     (71,624,712)                     

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 21
State funds 73,818,506                       69,537,502                       
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 38,923                              69,564                              
Resources received free of charge 1,738,234                         1,538,639                         
Total income from State Government 75,595,663                       71,145,705                       

2,658,971                         (479,007)                          

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central TAFE

SURPLUS/DEFICIT FOR PERIOD
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Central TAFE
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 2006 2005

Notes $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 33 10,545,125                       6,247,125                         
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 22,33 22,655                              201,969                            
Inventories 23 251,110                            347,011                            
Receivables 24 2,444,041                         2,759,584                         
Other current assets 25 10,563,821                       4,659,460                         
Total Current  Assets 23,826,752                       14,215,149                       

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 26 172,954,644                     153,607,042                     
Total Non-Current Assets 172,954,644                     153,607,042                     

TOTAL ASSETS 196,781,396                     167,822,191                     

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 28 5,788,068                         381,603                            
Provisions 30 6,579,255                         8,290,999                         
Other current liabilities 31 2,925,601                         2,927,368                         
Total Current Liabilities 15,292,924                       11,599,970                       

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 30 3,985,530                         2,710,238                         
Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,985,530                         2,710,238                         

Total Liabilities 19,278,454                       14,310,208                       

NET ASSETS 177,502,942                     153,511,983                     

EQUITY
Contributed equity 32 4,615,977                         3,432,477                         
Reserves 72,504,901                       52,356,413                       
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 100,382,064                     97,723,093                       

TOTAL  EQUITY 177,502,942                     153,511,983                     

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Central TAFE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 2006 2005

Notes $ $
Balance of equity at start of period 153,511,983                     142,583,718                     

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 32
Balance at start of period 3,432,477                         3,432,477                         
Other contributions by owners 1,183,500                         -                                   
Balance at end of period 4,615,977                         3,432,477                         

RESERVES 32
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period 52,356,413                       40,949,141                       
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation 20,148,488                       11,407,272                       
Balance at end of period 72,504,901                       52,356,413                       

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS) 32
Balance at start of period 97,723,093                       98,202,100                       
Surplus/(deficit) for the period 2,658,971                         (479,007)                          
Balance at end of period 100,382,064                     97,723,093                       

Balance of equity at the end of period 177,502,942                     153,511,983                     

Total income and expense for the period (a) 22,807,460                       10,928,265                       

(a) The aggregate net amount attributable to each category of equity is : Surplus $2,658,971 plus gains from asset 
revaluation of $20,148,488 (2005: deficit $479,007 plus gains from asset revaluation of $11,407,272)

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Central TAFE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 2006 2005

Notes $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Recurrent state funding - Department of Education and Training 61,624,361                       64,185,474                       
Capital state funding - Department of Education and Training 527,418                            466,418                            
Net cash provided by State Government 62,151,779                       64,651,892                       

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (52,782,714)                     (51,084,751)                     
Supplies and services (16,324,715)                     (16,431,785)                     
Grants and subsidies (3,336)                              -                                   
Finance costs -                                   (5,399)                              
Capital user charge (5,867,661)                       (11,046,055)                     
GST payments on purchases (1,913,678)                       (1,828,229)                       
Other payments (4,716,055)                       (4,418,014)                       

Receipts
Fee for service 7,116,652                         6,856,464                         
Student fees and charges  8,968,983                         8,150,482                         
Ancillary trading 2,630,901                         2,992,255                         
Interest received 793,507                            621,319                            
Commonwealth grants and contributions 3,084,111                         2,893,350                         
GST receipts on sales 900,757                            968,026                            
GST receipts from taxation authority 932,143                            879,788                            
Other receipts 1,691,126                         1,419,250                         
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 33 (55,489,979)                     (60,033,299)                     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 140                                   4,822                                
Purchase of non-current physical assets (2,543,254)                       (875,931)                          
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (2,543,114)                       (871,109)                          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Finance lease repayment of principal -                                   (303,033)                          

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities -                                   (303,033)                          

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,118,686                         3,444,451                         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 6,449,094                         3,004,643                         
   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 33 10,567,780                       6,449,094                         

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1 Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
The College's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 have been prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to International
 Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) which comprise a Framework for  the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework),
 Australian Accounting Standards and the Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Interpretation.

In preparing these financial statements the College has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new and revised Standards and Interpretations from
their operative dates as issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB) and UIG

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General Statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, 
the Framework Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied
by the Treasurer's Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Administration and Audit Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial statements
and take precedence over the Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of
 the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the 
resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b)  Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of land 
and buildings which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless
 otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar.

The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the College’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’.

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of 
causing a material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed at note 4 ‘Key sources of
 estimation uncertainty’.

(c)  Reporting Entity
The reporting entity comprises the College and entities listed at note 41 ‘Related bodies’

(d) Contributed Equity
UIG Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions
to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised 
as equity contributions. Capital contributions (appropriations) are designated as contributions by owners by Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 955 'Contributions 
by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
See note 32 'Equity'.

(e) Income
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

The funds received from the Department of Education and Training in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery Performance  
Agreement have been disclosed as State Funds under  'Revenues from State Government'.   This revenue is recognised in the period in which the
College meets the terms of the Agreement.

The majority of operating revenue of the College represents revenue earned  from student fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services,  
trading activities and Commonwealth grants and subsidies, as well as revenue received from the Department of Education and Training as a result of 
training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering arrangements.  Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets, and the 
rendering of services is recognised when the College has passed control of the goods or other assets, or delivery of the service to the customer.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership control transfer to the 
purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Rendering of services
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. Page 65 of 86
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Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised when the College obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control is normally obtained upon their receipt.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner 
or used over a particular period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the balance sheet date, the nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those 
undischarged conditions are  disclosed in the notes.

Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of non current assets and 
some revaluations of  non - current assets.

(f)  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income earned on the unexpended portion of the borrowings.  Other borrowing 
costs are expensed when incurred.

(g)  Property, Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing over $1 000 are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed 
(depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than $1 000 are immediately expensed direct
 to the Income Statement (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total)

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying values determined by 
reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transaction, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  This normally applies 
where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is dependent on using 
the depreciated replacement cost, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. 

Valuation of land and buildings are performed independently on an annual basis by the Department of Land Information (Valuation Services)
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset's fair value at the balance sheet date.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets.  Professional 
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.

Refer to note 26 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ for further information on revaluations.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption 
of their future economic benefits.

Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.  
Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:
 
Buildings 40 years
Motor Vehicles, Caravans and Trailers 6  years
Plant, Furniture and General Equipmen5, 10 or 15 years
Computing, Communications and Softw5 or 10 years
Leasehold Improvement 9 years

Works of art controlled by the College are classified as plant, property and equipment which is anticipated to have a very long and indefinite useful lives.  
Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been recognised.

(h)  Intangible Assets
All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, 
the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses

After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and  buildings and the cost model for all other 
buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses.  All other items of 
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, or more frequently when an indicator of 
impairment arises during the reporting period indicating that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life) on the straight line
 basis using rates which are reviewed annually.  All intangible assets controlled by the College have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

Software (a) 5 or 10 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the related 
hardware is treated as an intangible asset.  Software costing less than $1,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

(i)  Impairment of Assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at each balance sheet date.  Where there is 
an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.  As the College is a not for profit entity, unless an asset 
has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated or where the replacement cost is falling.  
Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration 
of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date irrespective 
of whether there is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference 
to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
 recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairments at each balance sheet date.

 See note 27 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See note 2(p) and note 24 for impairment of receivables.

(j)  Non current Assets (or Disposal Groups) Classified as Held for Sale
Non current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are presented 
separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet.  Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(k) Leases
Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of the lease item or if lower, the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.  The assets are disclosed as plant, equipment and vehicles under lease,  
and are depreciated over the period during  which the College is expected to benefit from their use.  Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
 finance charge and reduction of the outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease

The College has entered into a number of operating lease arrangement for computers and computing equipment.  Lease payments are expensed on a 
 straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the properties.

(l)  Financial Instruments
The College has two categories of financial instrument:
•  Loans and receivables (includes cash and term deposits); and
•  Non trading financial liabilities (payables)
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value.  
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(n) Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 31 'Other Liabilities') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay 
period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. 
The College considers the carrying amount to be equivalent to its net fair value.

(o) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class 
of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis.

Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are valued at net realisable value.
See note 23 'Inventories'.
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(p) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for uncollectible amounts (impairment).  The 
collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written off.  The allowance for uncollectible 
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the College will not be able to collect the debts.  The carrying amount is equivalent
to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  See note 2(l) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 24 ‘Receivables’.

(q)  Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the College becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days.  See note 2(l) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 28 ‘Payables’.

(r)  Borrowings
All loans are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the net proceeds received.  Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. See note 2(l) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 29 ‘Borrowings’

(s)  Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. See note 30 ‘Provisions’

(i)  Provisions - Employee benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the balance sheet date is recognised and measured
at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months 
after the end of the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  Leave liabilities are 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non salary components such as 
employer superannuation contributions.  In addition, the long service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and periods 
of service.

The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the balance sheet date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the College does not have an unconditional right
 to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the following superannuation schemes.
Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new members or the Gold State Superannuation 
Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members.  

The College has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes.  The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS 
Scheme transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS Scheme obligations 
are funded by concurrent contributions made by the College to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is a defined contribution 
scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.

Employees who are not members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes become non contributory members of the West State Superannuation 
(WSS) Scheme, an accumulation scheme.  The College makes concurrent contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the 
Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  The WSS Scheme is a defined contribution scheme as these 
contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the WSS Scheme.

The GESB makes all benefit payments and is recouped by the Treasurer for the employer share in respect of the Pension and GSS Scheme transfer benefits.

See also note 2(t) ‘Superannuation expense’.

(ii)  Provisions -Other
Employment On Costs 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised as separate liabilities and expenses 
when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of 
the College’s ‘Employee benefits expense’ and the related liability is included in employment on-costs provision. (See note 12 ‘Other expenses’ and 
note 30 ‘Provisions’).

(t)  Superannuation Expense
The following elements are included in calculating a superannuation expense in the Income Statement:

(a) Defined benefit plans - Change in the unfunded employer’s liability (i.e. current service cost and actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer 
in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme
 to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and

(b) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GSS and the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).

Defined benefit plans  - in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements in the liabilities in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS 
transfer benefits are recognised as expenses.  As these liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer (refer note 2(s)(i)), a revenue titled ‘Liabilities assumed 
by the Treasurer’ equivalent to the expense is recognised under Income from State Government in the Income Statement
(See note 21 ‘Income from State Government’).Page 68 of 86
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The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the cost of services provided in the
current year.

The GSS  scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of government reporting. 
However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) 
made by the agency to GESB extinguishes all agency's obligations to the related superannuation liability.

(u) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income and as assets or expenses, 
as appropriate at fair value.

(v)  Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures  presented in the current financial year. 

3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

No significant judgements have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.

4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
We have not included a provision for revenue refundable to the Department of Education and Training for under delivery of the College's training agreement
This is subject to review by the Department of Education and Training at a later date.

5 Disclosure of changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

The College has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and UIG Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1-Jan-06

1. AASB 119 'Employee Benefits' as issued in December 2004, AASB 2004-3 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' and AASB 2005-3  
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 119]'. The revisions to AASB 119 and the amending Standards deal with options regarding the 
 recognition of actuarial gains and losses associated with defined benefit plans and changes to disclosures for defined benefit plans. The College is not 
affected by these changes and as a result there is no financial impact in applying these Standards. 

2. AASB 2005-9 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 4, AASB1023, AASB 139 & AASB 132]' (Financial guarantee contracs). 
The amendment deals with the treatment of financial guarantee contracts, credit insurance contracts, letters of credit or credit derivative default contracts 
as either an 'insurance contracts' under AASB 4 'Insurance Contracts' or as a "financial guarantee contract" under AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement'. The College does not currently undertake these types of transactions, resulting in no financial impact in applying 
the Standard. 

3. UIG Interpreation 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease'. This Interpretation deals with arrangements that comprise a transaction 
or a series of linked transactions that may not involve a legal form of a lease but by their nature are deemed to be leases for the purposes of applying 
AASB 117 'Leases'. At balance sheet date, the College has not entered into any arrangements as specified in the Interpretation, resulting in no impact in 
applying the Interpretation. 

The following accounting standards and interpretations are not applicable to the College as they have no impact. 

AASB Standards and Interpretations
2005-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' (AASB 139 - Cash Flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions)
2005-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 1 and AASB 139]
2006-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 121]
2006-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 1]
2006-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards' [AASB 1045]
UIG 5 Rights to Interest arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds'.
UIG 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment'.

Voluntary Changes in accounting Policy

No voluntary changes in Accounting Policy have been made.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative. 

The College cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or UIG Interpretation unles specifically permitted by TI 1101 'Application of Australian
Accounting Standards and Other Pronoucements' Consequently, the College has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and UIG 
Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. These will be applied from their application date:

1. AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' (including consequential amendments in AASB 2005-10 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
[AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]. This Standard requires new disclosures in 
 relation to financial instruments. The Standard is considered to result in increased disclosures, both quantitative and qualitative of the College's exposure to 
risks, enhanced disclosure regarding components of the College's financial position and performance, and possible changes to the way of presenting certain 
items in the financial statements. The College does not expect any financial impact when the Standards is first applied, The Standard is required to be 
applied to annual reporting periods beginning or after 1 January 2007. 
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2. AASB 2005-10 ' Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 132, AASB 101 AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1,
AASB4,  AASB 1023, & AASB 1038)'. Ther amendmends are as a result of the issue of AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosure', which amends the 
financial instrument disclosure requirements in these standards. The College does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first applied. This 
Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. 

3. UIG 9 'Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives'. This Interpretation requires an embedded derivatives that has been combined with a non-derivatives 
to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivatives in certain circumstances. At balance sheet date, the College has not entered into 
any contracts as specified in the Interpretation resulting in no impact when the Interpretation is first applied. The Interpretation is required to be applied to 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006. 

4. AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. This Standard was revised and issued in October 2006 so that AASB 101 has the same requirements as
IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' (as issued by the IASB) in respect of for-profit entities. The College is a not-for-profit entity and consequently
 does not expect any financial impact when the Standards is first applied. The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2007. 

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are not applicable to the College as they will have no impact:

AASB Standards and Interpretations
AASB 1049 Financial Reporting of General Government Sectors by Governments'
2006-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 1)
2006-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (AASB 1045)
UIG 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under AASB 129 'Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics '.
UIG 8 Scope of AASB 2
UIG 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment',

Changes in Accounting Estimates

There have been no changes in accounting estimates.
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2006 2005
$ $

6 Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a) 47,421,520     46,158,629     47,421,520     
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (West State) (b) 3,571,526       3,366,394       3,571,526       
Superannuation - defined benefit plans (Gold State) (c)(d) 1,243,991       1,318,126       1,243,991       
Long service leave (e) 1,464,109       1,621,578       1,464,109       
Annual leave (e) 3,200,949       4,020,759       3,200,949       
Other 317,452          388,646          317,452          

57,219,547   56,874,132     
(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefit tax component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State and Gold State (contribution paid).
(c) Defined benefit plans include Pension scheme and Gold State (pre-transfer benefit). 
(d) An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see note 21 'Income from State Government').
(e) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note 12 "Other expenses'.  

7 Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment 2,722,305       3,039,592       2,722,305       
Communication expenses 630,272          701,068          630,272          
Utilities expenses 1,555,416       1,521,154       1,555,416       
Consultancies and contracted services 7,454,851       6,068,490       7,454,851       
Minor works 758,091          779,790          758,091          
Repairs and maintenance 334,408          431,642          334,408          
Operating lease and hire charges 2,380,968       2,030,820       2,380,968       
Travel and passenger transport 416,256          284,614          416,256          
Advertising and public relations 601,922          610,950          601,922          
Supplies and services - other 1,091,435       955,912          1,091,435       

17,945,924     16,424,032     

8 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation
Buildings 3,085,173       2,836,683       3,085,173       
Leasehold improvements - buildings 25,740          23,595           25,740          
Plant, furniture and general equipment 591,542          438,136          591,542          
Computers and communication network 807,366          1,174,575       807,366          
Total depreciation 4,509,821     4,472,988       

Amortisation
Other intangible assets -                  17,546            
Total amortisation -                  17,546            

Total depreciation and amortisation 4,509,821       4,490,534       

9 Finance costs
Finance lease finance charges -                  5,399              

-                  5,399              

10 Grants and subsidies
Other 3,336              -                  

3,336              -                  

11 Capital user charge

Capital user charge expense 11,578,953     11,046,055     

The Government applies a levy for the use of its capital for the delivery of services.  It is applied at 8% per annum on the net assets 
of the College, excluding exempt assets, and is paid to the Department of Treasury and Finance quarterly. (2005 rate 8%)

12 Other expenses

Building Maintenance 2,312,485       1,411,770       2,312,485       
Doubtful debts expense (48,786)           (20,548)           (48,786)           
Employment on-costs (a) 3,169,525       3,183,568       3,169,525       
Donations 100                 -                  100                 
Student prizes and awards 8,631              7,603              8,631              
Losses and write-offs 225,212          253,777          225,212          
Other (b) 16,431            58,184            16,431            

5,683,598       4,894,354       
(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-cost.  The on-costs liability  associated with the 
recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 30.  Provisions for Superannuation contributions 
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b) Other promotional materials

13 Fee for service
Fee for service -general 3,340,358       2,853,558       3,340,358       
Fee for service -Department of Education and Training 204,398          112,566          204,398          
International Division fees 3,844,152       3,455,531       3,844,152       

7,388,908       6,421,655       

The employment on-costs liability is included at note 30 'Provisions'
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14 Student fees and charges
Tuition fees 5,447,903       5,064,713       5,447,903       
Enrolment fees 580,120          620,650          580,120          
Resource fees 3,062,397       2,682,662       3,062,397       
Other college fees 24,671            96,616            24,671            

9,115,091       8,464,641       

15 Ancillary trading
Live works (not a trading activity) 77,526            132,832          77,526            
Contracting and consulting 1,145,959       1,188,643       1,145,959       
Other ancillary revenue 426,313          616,475          426,313          

1,649,798       1,937,950       

16 Trading Profit/(Loss)

Bookshop:                                
Sales 981,103          1,054,304       981,103          

-                  
Cost of sales: -                  

Opening inventory (328,026)         (529,171)         (328,026)         
Purchases (653,638)         (592,667)         (653,638)         

(981,664)         (1,121,838)      (981,664)         
Closing inventory                                                  (273,305)         (328,026)         (273,305)         

Cost of goods sold (708,359)         (793,812)         (708,359)         
                                                           

Trading Profit  - Bookshop                          272,744          260,492          

See note 2(o) 'Inventories' and note 23 'Inventories'.

17 Commonwealth grants and contributions
Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions 3,084,111       2,893,350       

3,084,111       2,893,350       
These grants include funding from the Adult Migrant English Program and Workplace English Language 
and Literacy Program.

18 Interest Revenue
Interest Revenue 814,944          621,761          
Interest earned from banking institutions on the college operating and term deposit accounts

19 Other revenue
Rental and facilities fees 874,817          844,195          874,817          
Other direct grants and subsidy revenue 128,919          476,003          128,919          
Sponsorship and donations revenue 84,208            161,326          84,208            
Miscellaneous revenue 603,182          96,107            603,182          

1,691,126       1,577,631       

20 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Costs of disposal of non-current assets
Land
Buildings
Plant, furniture and general equipment (8,187)             (9,058)             (8,187)             
Computers and communication network (4,188)             (63,149)           (4,188)             
Works of art -                  (300)                

(12,375)           (72,507)           
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Plant, furniture and general equipment 137                 2,500              
Computers and communication network 3                     2,322              

140                 4,822              

Net gain/(loss) (12,235)           (67,685)           
See also note 2(j) 'non-current assets classified as held for sale' and note 26 'property, plant and equipment"

21 Income from State government
State funds (received from Department of Education and Training)

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 53,863,709     51,962,875     53,863,709     
Superannuation 4,776,594       4,614,956       4,776,594       
Other recurrent funds 2,586,386       1,913,616       2,586,386       
Capital User Charge funding 11,578,953     11,046,055     11,578,953     
Capital works transferred 1,012,864     -                 1,012,864     

73,818,506     69,537,502     

The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer during the financial year.
Superannuation (a) 38,923            69,564            38,923            
Total Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 38,923            69,564            
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Resources received free of charge determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies
Department of Education and Training (b)

* Corporate systems support 1,280,127       1,171,221       1,280,127       
* Marketing and publications 422,587          128,953          422,587          
* Human resources, industrial relations support 2,575              -                  2,575              
* Other 32,945            238,464          32,945            

1,738,234       1,538,639       

(a) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a nominal  income to match the notional 
superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme 
and current employees who have a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme 
(The notional superannuation expense is disclosed at note 6 'Employee Benefits Expense'.)

been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable.

22 Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
Awards (a) 22,655            21,969            
Specific capital equipment and minor works (b) -                  180,000          
Total current 22,655            201,969          

(a) Represents monies bestowed on the college by private companies or individuals for the provision
of awards to students

(b) The college received a capital grant in December 2005 from the Department of Education and Training specifically
for the purchase of engineering equipment.

23 Inventories
Current
Inventories not held for resale:

Other (at cost) 25,287            18,985            
25,287            18,985            

Inventories held for resale:
Bookshop (at cost) 273,305          328,026          

273,305          328,026          
Less: Provision for obsolete stock (47,482)           -                  

225,823          328,026          
Total current 251,110          347,011          

See also note 2(o) "Inventories" and note 16 "Trading Profit".

24 Receivables

Current
Receivables - trade 1,411,057       1,351,122       1,411,057       
Receivables - students 545,939          758,976          545,939          
Receivables - other 32,314            61,990            32,314            
Allowance for impairment of receivables (286,193)         (279,180)         (286,193)         
GST receivable 231,355          192,819          231,355          

1,934,472       2,085,727       

Prepayments 509,569          673,857          509,569          
Total current 2,444,041       2,759,584       

See also note 2 (p) 'Receivables' and note 38 'Financial Instruments'.

25 Other assets
Current
Accrued income 6,563,821       659,460          
Cash investments (a) 4,000,000       4,000,000       
Total current 10,563,821     4,659,460       

(a) The college has a six month term deposit held at a banking institution

26 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Land
At fair value (a) 40,990,980     31,670,000     40,990,980     

40,990,980     31,670,000     
Buildings
At fair value (a) 127,711,421   118,672,600   127,711,421   
Accumulated depreciation (1,596,393)      (1,483,407)      (1,596,393)      

126,115,028   117,189,193   
Buildings under construction
Construction costs 1,193,203       562,889          1,193,203       

1,193,203       562,889          

(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal consideration, the College

the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and which would have 
owners, in which case the College shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of 
recognises revenues (except where the contribution of assets or services is in the nature of contributions by
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Leasehold improvements
At cost 303,480          303,480          303,480          
Accumulated depreciation (301,335)         (275,595)         (301,335)         

2,145              27,885            
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 
At cost 21,352            21,352            21,352            
Accumulated depreciation (21,352)           (21,352)           (21,352)           

-                  -                  
Plant,  furniture and general equipment
At cost 6,627,107       5,161,226       6,627,107       
Accumulated depreciation (4,240,264)      (3,720,603)      (4,240,264)      

2,386,843       1,440,623       
Computer equipment, communication network
At cost 6,401,981       6,953,096       6,401,981       
Accumulated depreciation (5,076,231)      (5,212,933)      (5,076,231)      

1,325,750       1,740,163       

Leased computer equipment and communication network 1,264,132       1,264,132       1,264,132       
Accumulated depreciation (1,264,132)      (1,198,858)      (1,264,132)      

-                  65,274            
Works of art 
At cost 59,425            29,745            59,425            
At valuation 881,270          881,270          881,270          

940,695          911,015          

172,954,644   153,607,042   172,954,644   

(a) Land and buildings were revalued during the year ended 31/12/06 by the Department of Land Information (Valuation Services). 
The effective date of the valuations is 1 July 2006.

(b) Buildings under construction reflects accumulated expenditure as at 31 December 2006 for building projects which are yet to
be completed, (refurbishment/ extension of existing buildings and/ or construction of new buildings on land controlled by the
college). 

(c ) The valuation of works of art is in accordance with an independent valuation which was undertaken by Sotheby's on the
basis of market value as at 31 December 2004.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below

2006 Land Buildings

Buildings
Under

Construction
Leasehold

Improvements

Motor vehicles, 
caravans and 

trailers 

Plant, 
furniture and 

general 
equipment

Computer 
equipment,

communication
network  Works of art  Total

Carrying amount at start of 
year 31,670,000     117,189,193   562,889          27,885            -                  1,440,623       1,805,437       911,015          153,607,042   1,805,437       
Additions 1,183,500       -                  630,314          -                  -                  1,551,360       331,901          29,680            3,726,755       331,901          
Transfer -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Disposal -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (8,187)             (2,635)             (10,822)           (2,635)             
Classified as held for sale -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Revaluation Increments 8,137,480       12,011,008     -                  -                  -                  -                  20,148,488     -                  
Impairment losses -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Impairment losses reversed 
(a) -                  -                  
Depreciation expense -                  (3,085,173)      -                  (25,740)           -                  (591,542)         (807,366)         (4,509,821)      (807,366)         
Write Offs (5,411)             (1,587)             (6,998)             (1,587)             
 Carrying amount at end of 
year 40,990,980     126,115,028   1,193,203       2,145              -                  2,386,843       1,325,750       940,695          172,954,644   

2005 Land Buildings

Buildings
Under

Construction
Leasehold

Improvements

Motor vehicles, 
caravans and 

trailers 

Plant, 
furniture and 

general 
equipment

Computer 
equipment,

communication
network  Works of art  Total

Carrying amount at start of 
year 31,684,000     108,502,484   413,526          51,480            -                  1,380,275       2,816,926       881,569          145,730,260   
Additions -                  -                  149,363          -                  -                  514,787          231,985          131,866          1,028,001       
Disposals -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (9,057)             (63,149)           (300)                (72,506)           
Classified as held for sale -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Revaluation Increments (14,000)           11,523,392     -                  -                  -                  (102,120)         11,407,272     
Impairment losses -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Impairment losses reversed 
(a) -                  
Depreciation expense -                  (2,836,683)      -                  (23,595)           -                  (438,136)         (1,174,575)      (4,472,988)      
 Write-off of Assets  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (7,247)             (5,750)             (12,997)           
 Carrying amount at end of 
year 31,670,000     117,189,193   562,889          27,885            -                  1,440,623       1,805,437       911,015          153,607,042   
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27 Intangible assets

Reconciliation
Computer Software
Carrying amount at start of year -                  17,546            
Amortisation Expense -                  (17,546)           
Carrying Amount at end of year -                  -                  

Impairment of Assets
There were no indications of impairment of property plant, equipment and intangibles as at 31 December 2006.

The College held no goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful life during the reporting period and at balance sheet date there were
no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets as at 31 December 2006 have been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

28 Payables
Current 
Trade payables 3,373              287,338          3,373              
GST payable 73,403            94,265            73,403            
Capital User Charge payable 5,711,292       -                  5,711,292       
Total current 5,788,068       381,603          

See also note 2(q) 'Payables' and note 38  'Financial Instruments'

29 Borrowings

Assets Pledged as security
The carrying amount of non current assets pledged as security are:
Leased computer equipment and communication network -                  65,274            

-                  65,274            

30 Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave 2,406,641       2,803,436       2,406,641       
Long service leave (a) 3,804,051       5,026,422       3,804,051       

6,210,692       7,829,858       6,210,692       
Other provisions -                  
Employment on-costs (b) 368,563          461,141          368,563          

368,563          461,141          368,563          
-                  

Total current 6,579,255       8,290,999       6,579,255       
-                  

Non-current -                  
Employee benefits provision -                  
Long service leave (a) 3,629,912       2,447,503       3,629,912       
Salary deferment 133,657          113,076          133,657          

3,763,569       2,560,579       3,763,569       
Other provisions -                  
Employment on-costs (b) 221,961          149,659          221,961          

221,961          149,659          221,961          
-                  

Total non current 3,985,530       2,710,238       3,985,530       

occur as follow:

Within 12 months of  balance sheet period 2,406,641       2,803,436       
More than 12 months after  balance sheet date. -                  -                  

2,406,641       2,803,436       

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the liabilities will occur as follows:

With in 12 months of balance sheet date 2,455,693       2,010,569       
More than 12 months of balance sheet date 4,978,270       5,463,356       

7,433,963       7,473,925       

disclosed in note 12 'Other expenses'.

Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 610,800          673,587          

(20,276)           (62,787)           
Carrying amount at end of year 590,524          610,800          

 including  payroll tax and workers compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected 
future payments.  The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is 

Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement 
for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will 

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs
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31 Other liabilities

Current 
Income received in advance (a) 943,962          1,320,939       943,962          
Accrued expenses 1,534,951       917,701          1,534,951       
Accrued salaries and related costs 424,033          666,760          424,033          
Money/deposits held in trust 22,655            21,969            22,655            
Total current liabilities 2,925,601       2,927,368       

(a) Income received in advance comprises:
Fee for service 669,475          667,649          669,475          
Student fees and charges 274,487          461,818          274,487          
Other -                  191,472          -                  

943,962          1,320,939       

32 Equity
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the College.  The Government holds the equity interest in the College on behalf of 
the community.  The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at start of year 3,432,477       3,432,477       

Contributions by owners
Transfer of net assets from other agencies (a) 1,183,500       -                  
Total contributions by owners 1,183,500       -                  

Balance at end of year 4,615,977       3,432,477       

(a) Capital works from Department of Education and Training

Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of year 52,356,413     40,949,141     52,356,413     
Land 8,137,480       (14,000)           8,137,480       
Buildings 12,011,008     11,523,392     12,011,008     
Works of art -                  (102,120)         -                  
Balance at end of year 72,504,901     52,356,413     

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) (Retained Earnings)

Balance at start of year 97,723,093     98,202,100     
Result for the period 2,658,970       (479,007)         
Balance at end of year 100,382,063   97,723,093     

33 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items 

Cash on hand 43,600            27,882            43,600            
Cash at bank 1,501,525       1,519,243       1,501,525       
Short term deposits 9,000,000       4,700,000       9,000,000       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 22 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 22,655            201,969          22,655            

10,567,780     6,449,094       

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by / (used in) operating activities

Net Cost of Services (72,936,692)   (71,624,712)   (72,936,692)   

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 ) 4,509,821       4,490,534       4,509,821       
Doubtful debts expense (note 12) (48,786)           (20,548)           (48,786)           
Capital user charge (note 11) 5,711,292       -                  5,711,292       
Superannuation expense (note 6) 4,815,517       4,684,519       4,815,517       
Resources received free of charge 1,738,234       1,538,639       1,738,234       
Net (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant  and equipment  (note  20) 12,375            67,685            12,375            
Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money) 222,885          253,507          222,885          
Shared service charges 878,727          -                  878,727          
Non-cash grants from DET 1,012,864       -                  1,012,864       
Other non-cash items (27,588)           286,057          (27,588)           
Donated assets -                  152,070          -                  

-                  
(Increase)/decrease in assets: -                  
Current receivables (c) 182,778          148,896          182,778          
Current inventories 95,901            198,756          95,901            
Other current assets (5,740,073)      51,221            (5,740,073)      
Current payables (c) 5,801,852       (177,594)         5,801,852       
Current provisions (1,619,166)      2,055,817       (1,619,166)      
Other current liabilities (230,591)         (252,393)         (230,591)         
Non-current Provisions 1,202,991       (1,106,782)      1,202,991       

in the Balance Sheet as follows:
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-                  
Net GST receipts/(payments) (a) (1,012,921)      (860,203)         (1,012,921)      
Change in GST in receivables/payables (b) (59,399)           81,232            (59,399)           

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (55,489,979)   (60,033,299)   

(a)  This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables
(c) Note that the ATO receivable /payable in respect in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets 
are not included in these items as they are not reconciling items

34 Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments

Within 1 year 3,369,836       1,813,494       
3,369,836       1,813,494       

The capital commitments include amounts for:
Buildings 3,369,836       1,813,494       

Lease commitments

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities, are payable:
Within 1 year 2,097,070       1,950,920       
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,281,478       2,036,151       

3,378,548       3,987,071       
Representing:
Cancellable operating leases 156,454          215,796          
Non-cancellable operating leases 3,222,094       3,771,275       

3,378,548       3,987,071       

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within 1 year 1,969,449       1,841,793       
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,252,645       1,929,482       

3,222,094       3,771,275       

Within 1 year 127,621          109,127          
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 28,833            106,669          

156,454          215,796          

These commitments are all inclusive of GST

35 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

As at reporting date the college has no contingent liabilities or contingent assets

36 Events occurring after balance sheet date

There are no significant events occuring after balance date that materially impact the financial statements.

37 Explanatory Statement

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below.  Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $250,000
and any variance greater than $500,000. 

Significant variations between estimated and actual results for 2006
2006 2006

Estimate Actual Variation
$ $ $

Employee expenses 60,104,295     57,219,547     (2,884,748)      
Supplies and services 16,359,702     17,945,924     1,586,222       
Student fees and charges 8,557,325       9,115,089       557,764          
Ancillary Trading 726,407          1,649,798       923,391          
Commonwealth grants and contributions 2,421,474       3,084,111       662,637          
Interest revenue 500,000          814,944          314,944          
Other revenue 813,875          1,691,126       877,251          
State Funds 70,327,508     73,818,506     3,490,998       
Resources received free of charge 2,400,000       1,738,234       (661,766)         

Employee Expenses
A number of staff were transferred to the Education & Training Shared Services Centre as at 12 July 2006.

Supplies and services
Charges for the Education & Training Shared Services Centre were not included in the original estimates.

Student fees and charges
Higher than anticipated student numbers lifted overall student fee revenues.

in the financial statements, are payable as follows:

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

Cancellable operating lease commitments

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported 
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Ancillary trading
Revenues from consultancies and the sale of curriculum materials were higher than the original estimates.

Commonwealth grants and contributions
Student numbers within the college's Adult Migrant English Program and Workplace English Literacy programs were
higher than anticipated for 2006.

Interest revenue
Lower than planned capital expenditure resulted in higher cash holdings which earnt higher than planned interest income.

Other revenue
A performance adjustment from Riskcover for prior years earnings was taken up as revenue.

State funds
A number of addendums to the DPA were made during 2006, increasing funding, particularly for disabilities, skills 
shortages and capital improvements.

Resources received free of charge
The level of Resources received free of charge was less than the original estimates due to the move to shared services.

2006 2005 Variance
$ $ $

Supplies and services 17,945,924     16,424,032     1,521,892       
Capital user charge 11,578,953     11,046,055     532,898          
Other expenses 5,683,598       4,894,354       (789,244)         
Fee for service 7,388,908       6,421,655       967,253          
Student fees and charges 9,115,089       8,464,641       650,448          
Ancillary Trading 1,649,798       1,937,950       (288,152)         
State funds 73,818,506     69,537,502     4,281,004       

Supplies and services
Charges for the Education & Training Shared Services Centre were introduced in 2006.

Capital user charge
Due to higher net assets, the capital user charge was higher for 2006.

Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance works carried out by the Department of Education & Training on behalf of the College.

Fee for service
Higher revenues from International projects boosted fee for service revenues.

Student fees and charges
Increased student numbers combined with CPI increases on fees to lift overall student fee revenues.

Ancillary trading
Curriculum development revenue was lower than in the previous year.

State funds
A number of addendums to the DPA were made during 2006, increasing funding, particularly for disabilities, skills 
shortages and capital improvements.

38 Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Risk management Objectives and Policies

Financial Instruments held by the College are cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The College has limited exposure to financial risks.
The College's overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk

The College trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. The College has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services
are made to customers  with an appropriate credit history. In addition receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
College's exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The College has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cashflows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The College's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is low and primarily relates to funds on mid-term deposit.

Significant Variances between actual results for 2006 and 2005
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2006 2005
$ $

(b) Financial Instrument Disclosures

Interest Rate Risk Exposure

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate

Variable 
Interest Rate

Within  1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  3-4 Years  4-5 Years  More than 5 
years 

 Non-Interest 
Bearing 

 Total 

2006 % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 5.75% -                  10,545,125     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  10,545,125     
Restricted cash  and cash equiv 5.74% -                  22,655            -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  22,655            
Receivables 2,444,041       2,444,041       
Other Current Assets 5.75% -                  4,000,000       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  4,000,000       

-                  14,567,780     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,444,041       17,011,821     
Financial Liabilities
Payables -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  5,788,068       5,788,068       

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  5,788,068       5,788,068       

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity
Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate

Variable 
Interest Rate

Within  1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  3-4 Years  4-5 Years  More than 5 
years 

 Non-Interest 
Bearing 

 Total 

2005 % $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 5.00% -                  6,247,125       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  6,247,125       
Restricted cash  and cash 
equivalent 5.42% -                  201,969          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  201,969          
Receivables -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,759,584       2,759,584       
Other Current Assets 5.77% -                  4,000,000       -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  659,460          4,659,460       

-                  10,449,094     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  3,419,044       13,868,138     
Financial Liabilities
Payables -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  381,603          381,603          

-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  381,603          381,603          

Fair Values
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements are not materially
different from their net fair values.

39 Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers

$
$

       $0 - $10,000 11                   *14
$90,001 - $100,000 -                  *1

$180,001 - $190,000 1                     -                  
$230,001 - $240,000 *1

The total remuneration of the members of the Accountable Authority is: 188,725          330,883          

During 2005 the Managing Director, Brian T Paterson resigned and was entitled to an eligible termination payment.
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the Accountable Authority.

No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of Senior Officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total fees,
salaries, superannuation and other benefits receivable for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

$
$40,001-$50,000 *1
$60,001 - $70,000 -                  *1
$70,001 - $80,000 -                  *1
$90,001 - $100,000 *1 -                  

$100,001 - $110,000 *2 -                  
$110,001  -$120,000 1                     1                     
$120,001  -$130,000 1                     2                     
$130,001 - $140,000 2                     
$300,001-$310,000 -                  *1

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 817,492          845,140          

* Includes senior officers where periods of service are less than twelve months

Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority
The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total fees, salaries, superannuation and  
other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The following table details the College's exposure to interest rate risk at the balance sheet date.
Fixed Interest Rate Maturity
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2006 2005
$ $

No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

During 2005 J Chadwick resigned and was entitled to a severance payment which is included in the band $300,001-$310,000.
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of senior officers other than 
senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority.

40 Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows 88,600            80,500            

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 88,600            80,500            
88,600            80,500            

41 Related Bodies
As at the reporing date the college had no related bodies.

42 Affiliated Bodies
As at the reporing date the college had no affiliated bodies.

43 Supplementary Financial Information

Write-Offs
Public property 9,325              12,996            
Bad Debts 168,405          147,112          
Inventory -                  93,399            

177,730          253,507          
Loses Through Theft, Defaults And Other Causes

5,411              2,370              
5,411              2,370              

44 Schedule of Income and Expenditure by Service

The college provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (2) (viii)) and that is Vocational 
Education and Training Delivery.

Losses of public and other moneys and public and other property through theft, default or otherwise
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Annual Estimates 
 
In accordance with Treasurers Instruction 953, the annual estimates for the 2007 year are 
hereby included in the 2006 Annual Report. These estimates do not from part of the 20056 
financial statements and are not subject to audit.  
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CENTRAL TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
INCOME STATEMENT

2007
$

Estimate

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 61,865,399
Supplies and services 19,378,808
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,082,645
Grants and subsidies 16,700
Capital user charge 5,873,691
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 35,000
Other expenses 6,358,370
Cost of sales 700,000

Total Cost of Services 98,310,613

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 7,209,310
Student charges and fees 9,462,892
Sales 930,000
Ancillary trading 1,028,822
Commonwealth grants and contributions 2,846,477
Interest revenue 690,000
Other revenue 374,486
Total Revenue 22,541,987

Total income other than income from State Government 22,541,987

NET COST OF SERVICES -75,768,626

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 68,151,799
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 0
Assets assumed/(transferred) 0
Resources received free of charge 1,500,000
Total income from State Government 69,651,799

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD -6,116,827
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S40 SUBMISSION
BALANCE SHEET

2007
$

Estimate

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,689,177
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 23,000
Inventories 380,000
Receivables 5,900,000
Other current assets 1,000,000

Total Current Assets 8,992,177

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment 178,273,435
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets 178,273,435
TOTAL ASSETS 187,265,612
 
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 309,890
Provisions 8,500,000
Other current liabilities 1,200,000
Total Current Liabilities 10,009,890

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 2,700,000
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,700,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,709,890

NET ASSETS 174,555,722

EQUITY
Contributed Equity 3,432,477
Reserves 77,688,401
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 93,434,844

TOTAL EQUITY 174,555,722
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S40 SUBMISSION
CHANGES IN EQUITY

2007
$

Estimate

 
Balance of equity at start of period

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance at start of period 3,432,477
Capital contribution
Other contributions by owners
Distributions to owners
Balance at end of period 3,432,477

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period 73,688,401
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors
Restated balance at start of period
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation 4,000,000
Balance at end of period 77,688,401
 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)
Balance at start of period 99,551,671
Net adjustment on transition to AIFRS
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors
Restated balance at start of period
Surply/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period -6,116,827
Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity
Balance at end of period 93,434,844

Balance of equity at end of period 174,555,722

 
Total income and expense for the period -2,116,827
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S40 SUBMISSION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2007
$

Estimate

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds 68,803,766
Capital contributions 286,418
Holding account drawdowns
Net cash provided by State Government 69,090,184

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits -57,092,492
Supplies and services -18,578,808
Capital User Charge -11,584,983
Grants and subsidies -16,700
GST payments on purchases -2,639,216
Other payments -7,813,355

Receipts
Fee for service 7,209,310
Student fees and charges 9,462,892
Ancillary trading 1,958,822
Commonwealth grants and contributions 2,846,477
Interest received 690,000
GST receipts on sales 954,262
GST receipts from taxation authority 1,684,954
Other receipts 374,486
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities -72,544,351

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets -5,401,436

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities -5,401,436

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents -8,855,603
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,567,780

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 1,712,177
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Central TAFE Contact Details 
 
Customer Contact Central – Tel 1300 300 822 
Website – www.central.wa.edu.au
Email – enquiry@central.wa.edu.au
 
 
Perth 
25 Aberdeen Street 
PERTH  
 
Art, Design and Media Centres 
12 and 19 Aberdeen Street 
 
eCentral  
140 Royal Street 
EAST PERTH  
 
Fremantle Art and Design 
Fremantle Prison Annexe 
The Terrace 
FREMANTLE 
 
Leederville  
Richmond Street 
LEEDERVILLE  
 
Mt Lawley  
Harold Street 
MT LAWLEY  
 
Nedlands 
Oral Health Centre of WA 
17 Monash Avenue 
NEDLANDS 
 
Subiaco 
133 Salvado Road 
SUBIACO 
 
Wembley  
Wembley Print Annexe 
9 Salvado Road 
WEMBLEY  
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